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ASSEMBLY, No.1489 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

INTRODUCED MAY 28. 1992 

By Assemblymen AZZOLINA, WOLFE. Assemblywomen Haines. 
Farragher. Assemblyman Arnone. Assemblywoman 

J. Smith and Assemblyman Corodemus 

1 AN ACT concerning municipal fair share obligations under thP. 
2 "Fair Housing Act," amending P.L.1985, c.222, and repealing 
3 section 23 of P.L.1985, c.222. 
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BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the 
State of New Jersey: 

1. Section 7 of P.L.1985, c.222 (C.52:27D-307) is amended to 
read as follows: 

7. It shall be the duty of the council, seven months afte r the 
confirmation of the last member initially appointed to the 
council, or January 1, 1986. whichever is earlier. and from time 
to time thereafter, to: 

a. Determine housing regions of the State; 
b. Estimate the present and prospective need for low and 

moderate income housing at the State and regional le, el:,. 
c. Adopt criteria and guidelines for: 
(1) Municipal determination of its present and prospec ti, e fair 

share of the housing need in a given region. ~unicipa l fair share 
shall be determined after crediting on a one-to-one basis each 
current unit of low and moderate income housing of adequate 
standard. including any such housing constructed or acquired as 
part of a housing program specifically intended to provide housing 
for lot,· and mode,ate income households: 

[::) \iurncipal adjustment of the present and pruspecti,e fair 
share based upon available vacant and developable land. 
infrastructure considerations or environmental or historic 
preservation factors and adjustments shall be made whenever: 

(a) The preservation of historically or important architecture 
and sites and their environs or environmentally sensitive lands 
may be jeopardized. 

(b) The established pattern of development in the community 
would be drastically altered. 

(c) Adequate land for recreational. conservation or 
agricultural and farmland preservation purposes would not be 
provided. 

(d) Adequate open space would not. be provided, 
(e) The pattern of development is contrary to the planning 

designations in the State Development and Redevelopment Plan 
prepared pursuant to sections 1 through 12 of P.L.1985. c.398 
(C.52:18A-196 et seq.), 

(f) Vacant and developable land is not available in the 
municipality, and 

EXPLANATION--Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the 
above bill is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. 

Matter underlined ib.lLs_ is new matter . 
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(g) Adequate public facilities and infrastructure capacities are 
2 not available, or would result in costs prohibitive to the public if 
3 provided; and 
4 (3) [Phasing of present and prospective fair share housing 
5 requirements pursuant to section 23 of this act] (Deleted bv 
6 amendment. P.L. ............ c ........... ) (now pending before the 
7 Legislature as this bill); 
8 d. Provide population and household projections for the State 
9 and housing regions; 

10 e. [May in its discretion. place a limit. based on a percentage 
11 of existing housing stock in a municipality and any other criteria 
12 including employment opportunities which the council deems 
13 appropriate, upon the aggregate number of units which may be 
14 allocated to a municipality as its fair share of the region s 
15 present and prospective need for low and moderate income 
16 housing] No municioali tv shall be required to address within an\ 
17 given six year period a fair share bevond 50 oercent of the fair 
18 share assigned bv the council for that six vear period. unless it is 
19 demonstrated. following obiection bv an interested partv and an 
20 evidentiarv hearing. that based upon the facts and circumstances 
21 of the affected municioalitv it is likelv that the municioalitv 
22 through its zoning powers can create a realistic opportunitv for 
23 more than 50 percent of its fair share within that six vear 
24 period. In anv event. no municipalitv shall be required to address 
25 a fair share bevond 1000 units within anv given six vear period. 
26 unless it is demonstrated. following objection bv an intereskd 
'.21 partv and an evidentiarv hearing. based upon the facts and 
28 circumst2J1ces of the affected municioalit\· that it :s like!\· th2.t 
~9 the mumcipalitv throuQh its zonin2 cowers could crecte c1 

JO realistic opportunitv for more than 1000 low and moderate 
31 income uni ts within that si:-: \'P i.i f oeriod. The f ac:s and 
.J :2 circumstancPs sufficient to requi rP a municipaiit\· to orO\ 1de 
J3 number of units grea ter than the number deri\·ed under :hesr, 
J.! limitations would be oroof that the munic ioalitv can create a 
35 realistic opportunitv within that six vear oeriod for at least fi,,·e 
36 times the number of units so der:,ed . based uoon the oast 
37 residential building permit activil\· ln the municioalitY. 
38 In carrying out the above duties. including. but not limited to . 
39 present and prospec ti\e need estimations the council shall gi,e 
-10 appropriate weight to pertinent resea rch studies. go,·emment 
-11 reports. decisions of other branches of government. 
-12 implementation of the State Development and Redevelopment 
-13 Plan prepared pursuant to sections 1 thro ugh 12 of P.L.1985 . 
4-1 c.398 and public comment. To assist the council. the State 
-1:=i Planning Commission established under that act shall provide the 
46 council annually with economic growth. development and decline 
~7 projections for each housing region for the next si:x years. The 
-18 council shall develop procedures for periodically adjusting 
-19 regional need based upon the low and moderate income housing 
50 that is provided in the region through any federal. State. 
51 municipal or private housing program . 
.S:2 (cf: P.L.1985. c.22~. s.7) 
:=i3 " Section 23 of P.L.1985. c.222 (C.52:27O-:323) is repealed . 
5-l 3. This act shall take e ffect immediately. 
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STATEMENT 

3 Experience with the compliance mechanisms established by the 
4 "Fair Housing Act," P.L.1985. c.222 (C.52:27O-301 et seq.) 
5 demonstrates that the act places considerable planning and 
6 financial burdens upon municipalities and requires them to zone 
7 lands that will not result i:: the creation of additional affordable 
8 housing because the · market cannot reasonably absorb all the 
9 housing needed to produce the additional affordable housing. The 

10 Council on Affordable Hou~i:,g sought to avoid the imposition of 
11 onerous burdens on rnur: :ci pali ties by adopting a regulation 
12 capping th~ fair share of c;ach municipality at 1000. The courts 
13 declared the regulation illegal because it imposed a cap that was 
14 not based upon the facts and circumstances of the municipality. 
15 This bill seeks to establish a cap directly related to the facts and 
16 circumstances of the municipality. The legislation would also 
17 eliminate th e potential fo r temporary taking claims under the 
18 phasing provisions of section 23 of P. L.1985, c.222 
19 jC.52:27O-323) pursuant w which a municipality could zone a 
20 parcel for inclusionary dev elopment . but bar the ov,rner from 
21 developing the parcel consistent with the inclusionary rezoning 
~? for some set period of ti me. That section of law is therefore 
23 repealed. 
24 

27 
28 Pru\·ides for adjustment of mur,; .;qial fair shue obi:gc1tions unde:-
29 ,he Fair HOL:~rng . .\c t.·· 
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SENATE, No. 858 
· .. , .. :n. · 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY · 

[NTRODUCED MAY 18. 1992 

By Senators KYRILLOS. DORSE'{, Corman. Inverso . 
Dimon. Haines. Connors and Adler 

AN ACT concerning municipal fair share obligations , · .. der th P. 
2 "Fair Ho using Act," amending P.L.1985. c.222, and cpeaiing 
3 section 23 of P.L.1985, c.222 . 
4 

5 
6 
-, 
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1 \ 

BE IT E:'-JACTED by the Senate and General Assc .-; ,,1 y of the 
Stare of .'\/ew Jersey: 

1. Section 7 of P.L.1985. c.222 (C.52:27D-307) is omended to 
read as follows: 

7. [t shall he the duty of the council, seven months after the 
confirmation of the last member initially appo inted to the 
council. o r January 1, 1986, whichever is earlier. ar ," from time 

12 to time the reafter. to: 
lJ a. Dete rmine housing regions of the State: 
l.J. b. Estimate the present and prospective need tor low and 
15 moderate income housing at the State and regional levels: 
16 c. ,\dopt criteria and guidelines for: 
17 (1) \lunicipal determination of its present and prospec:ive fair 
18 share o:· the hous::1g need in a gi\·en region. \lunic:pa l faH· sha,e 
19 shall be dete n,·.:n ed afte.r crediting on a one-to-one basis eac:i 
20 currP.n; unit o: iO\\. and moderate income housing of adec;u;ite 
21 standard . incluci'ng an y such housing constructed or acqutred as 
22 part of 3 :ious:: :,,; program specifically intended to pro\·ide housing 
23 for 101\ · '":-,ci ,nnde ~;-; te income households: 
0 • (2) \ll!J,: .. :;;ai adjustment of the presi;n t and µrospectJ\ e fair 
25 share oased upon available \ acant and developab le land. 
25 infrastn.:c:ure considerations or environmental or historic 
2 ;- preser, a tion factors and adj~stments shall be made whenever: 
28 (a) The preservation of historically or important architecture 
29 and site!> and their ~nvirons or environmentally sensiti,·e lands 
30 may be jeopardized. 
31 (b) The establishec patte rn of de\·elopment in the community 
32 would be circs~ically altered. 
33 (c) Adequate land for recreational. conservation or 
34 agricultural ,;rd fa::T,land preservation purposes would not be 
35 provided. 
36 (d) Adequa:e open space would not be provided. 
37 (e) The p.itte rn of development is contrary to the planning 
38 designations :n the S,ate Development and Redevelopment Plan 
39 prepareci pursuant to sections 1 through 12 of P. L.1985. c.398 
.J.0 (C.52:18A-1 96 et seq.), 
.J.1 (f) Vacant and developable land is not available in the 

EXPLANAT,ON--Matter enc l osed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the 
above bill is not enacted and is i ntended to be omitted in the l aw . 

Matter under:i ned ls new matter. 
Matter enclosed in superscript numerals has been adopted as follows: 

Senate SCO committee amendments adooted October , . 1992. 
• Senate floor amendmen:s adopted October 15. ,QQ2. 
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municipality, and 
(g) Adequate public faciii tie·s and infrastructure capacities are 

not available. or would result in costs prohibitive to the public if 
provided: and 

(3) [Phasing of present and prospective fair share housing 
requirements pursuant to section 23 of this act] (Deleted bv 
amendment. P.L. . c. ) (now pending before the Legislature as 
this bill); 

d. Provide population and household projections for the State 
and housing regions: 

e. [May in its discretion, place a limit, based on a percentage 
of existing housing stock in a municipality and any other criteria 
including employment opportunities which tht; council deems 
appro priate. upon the aggregate number of units which may '.'Je 
allocated to a municipality as its fair share o r the region · s 
present and prospective need for low and moderate income 
housing] 2111 i ts discretion, place a limit. based on a percentage 
of existing housing stock in a municipality and anv other criteria 
including emolovrnent opportunities which the counci~ems 
aporooriate . uoon the aggregate number of units which rnav be 
allocat ed to a municipalitv as its fair share of the region · s 
present and prospective need for low and moderate income ·-
housing .2 No 1[municipalitv shall be required to address within 
anv given six vear period a fair share bevond SO percent of the 
fair share assigned bv the council for that six vear oeriod. unless 
it is demonstrated. follo\, ino oblectinn bv an inten~sted oa,,·. and 
an evidentiarv heanne. that ba°''"d uoon the :acts anc 
circums:a.r.ces of the 3ffected municioalitv it is !ikeh :h2t ,':," 
rnunicioa!it\· throuQh its zoning ;im,·ers can cre;,te ;, :·eai1s::c 
opoortun1t\· for more than :iO percent of its fair share \,·:thin ,h2: 
six vear oeriod. [n ;,m· e•.e:1t. nol1 municioalitv shall be reou1red · 
to addn~~s a fair sha,e be\ ond lllOO units <.vithm i[an\· Qi\·,,r:Jl six 
1[\·ear period] \·ears from the grant of substanti\e certificatior. 1: 

unless it 1s demonstrated. follo,\·ing objection bv an interestrc 
oartv and an evidentiarv hearing. based upon the facts . and 
circumstances of the affected municipality that it is likelv that 
the mun icipali t v through its zoning powers could create a 
realistic opportunitv for more than 1000 lo\\' and moderate 
income units within that six vear period. 1[The facts and 
circumstances sufficient to require a municioalitv ·to pro, 1ci".......0_ 

number of units greater than the number derived under these 
limitations would be oroof that the municipality can .cre;,te a 
realistic opoortunitv within that six vear period for at least f1,e 
times the number of uni ts so derived. based uoon the pas t 
re.;;idential building permit activitv in the municipalitv .] For the 
ourooses of this section. the facts and circumstances which shall 
determine whether a municioalitv · s fair share shall exceed 1.000 
units. as provided above. shall be a finding that the municipalitv 
has issued more than 5.000 certificates of occupancv for 
residential uni ts in the six-vear period preceding the petition for 
substantive certification in connection with which the objection 
was filed. l 

In carrying out the above duties. including, but not limited to. 
present and prospective need estimations the council shall gi,·e 
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appropriate weight to pertinent research studies. government 
2 reports. decisions of other branches of government, 
3 implementation of the State Development and Redevelopment 
4 Plan prepared pursuant to sections J through 12 of P.L.1985, 
5 c.398 and public comment. To assist the council. the State 
6 Planning Commission established under that act shall provide the 
7 council annually with economic growth. development and decline 
8 
9 
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projections for each housing region for the next six years. The 
council shall develop procedures for periodically adjusting 
regional need based upon the low and moderate income hous ing 
that is provided in the region through any federal. State. 
municipal or private housing program. 
(cf: P. L. 1985. c. 222. s. 7) 

.., Section 23 of P.L. 1985. c.222 (C .52 :270-32:') is repe al ed . 
3 . This act shall take effect imm ediately . 

Provides for adjustment of municipal fair share obliga t ions und er 
the .. Fair Housing :\ct. .. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN V. KELLY (Chairman): I am going to 
call the meeting to order. We are going to discuss Senate Bill 
No. 858 and Assembly Bi 11 No. 1489. Do you want to read the 
intent of the legislation, Mr. Lee? 

MR. LEE (Committee Aide): Which one are we going to 
take up first? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 
want to. 

MR. LEE: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 

here. 

I don't care, whichever one you 

The Assembly one, because he is 

J O S E P H 
years ago. 

AZ Z OLIN A: It was my bill originally five 

MR. 
identical. 

LEE: 
There 

The 
is 

identical as amended 
identical to S-858. 

bills, of course, 
an amendment in 

assuming that 

are 
here 
it 

intended 
to make 

to be 
1489 

is amended 

This bill would require that no allocation of more 
than 1000 uni ts be assigned to any municipality as its fair 
share of affordable housing unless it is demonstrated that a 
greater goal is realistically feasible. As a criterion for 
such determination, the bi 11 provides for a determination of 
whether the municipality has, during the six years preceding 
its application for substantive certification, issued more than 
5000 residential certificates of occupancy. 

This bill would also repeal section 23 of the Fair 
Housing Act, which allows municipalities to phase in their fair 
share obligations over a period of time. It is intended to 
eliminate the potential for a temporary taking of the property 
whereby the municipality after zoning a parcel for inclusionary 
development could thereafter bar the owner from developing the 
parcel consistent with inclusionary rezoning for some set 
period of time. 

1 



So it is our intent ion, again, to meet the spirit of 
the law the Mount Laurel decision -- but also to divide for 
inadequate means for those municipalities that have been listed 
in this particular bill, to meet the legislation, and also to 
face up to the fact that there may be some regional issues that 
may be pertaining only to specific municipalities, which the 
current legislation does not answer, nor do the courts conside~: 

Thank you. 
MR. AZZOLINA: Now I would like to call on Mayor 

Peters, Mayor of the largest municipality in the county, over 
70,000 people. They have been trying diligently to work out 
the problem with the 1000 units through various methods allowed 
them by law. Mayor Peters? 
MAYOR ROSEMARY PETERS: Gentlemen, thank 
you for allowing me the opportunity to speak to you today. 
Middletown, I think, was probably uniquely affected by the Fair 
Housing Act and the subsequent quotas that came out, because I 
don't believe that towns like Middletown were ever really the 
target of the Mount Laurel I and Mount Laurel II decisions, 
which dealt with exclusionary zoning as a bar to the provision 
of affordable housing. As a matter of fact, in the 1980 census 
figures which were used to develop the quotas, one-third of 
Middletown's population was of low or moderate income and would 
have qualified for Mount Laurel. So I don't think that anyone 
can suggest that Middletown has not afforded opportunities for 
low- and moderate-income people to own their own homes. 

Unfortunately, when the quotas were developed, the 
methodology didn't take into account the previous zoning 
history. It didn't take into account the number of units in a 
town that were occupied by low- and moderate-income people. It 
didn't take into account some of the affirmative action that 
towns like Middletown had taken to provide housing to low- and 
moderate-income people. Before the Fair Housing Act and before 
the Mount Laurel Court . decision, Middletown had built almost 

4 



and went back to 1850 for my own particular town, which I speak 
of. What this bill basically does-- It reduces the number 
again to 1000 by law. 

I would like to call on-- Well, first, there have 
only been, what, 14,000 Mount Laurel units in the whole State 
ip the last six or seven years that we have been in operation. 
What's happening is, there are so many condos not being sold at 
a 11. What we a re doing, overburdening the towns with these 
uni ts, the Builders' Remedy, or the money you have to pay out 
of the towns-- We are hurting a lot of the young people who 
a~e trying to buy affordable housing today. We are making the 
young people that won't qualify under the units through their; 
Builders' Remedy-- They would have to pay, probably, another 
20 percent for homes that they can't afford anyway. So, 
through this system we are really hurting everybody. 

I would like to call on Dave for a few comments from 
Brick. Assemblyman Dave Wolfe. 
ASSEMBLYMAN D A V I D w. WOLFE: Thank you, 
Assemblyman. 

Assembly members, I thank you very much, and Mr. 
Chairman. 
obligation 

It is not the intent of us, as sponsors, to deny the 
of communities to provide for affordable housing 

under the regular legislation. However, we are very concerned, 
as Assemblyman Azzolina has already stated. The original 
intent has been circumvented, and it is our purpose, through 
this legislation, to place a cap which would include all the 
towns which you have listed, to meet their obligations. It 
also takes into account cert a in regiona 1 factors that may, at 
times, be included, that may necessitate that that may go above 
1000, or else may go below 1000. 

I know Assemblyman Azzo lina has mentioned frequently, 
as many of you are aware, that certain communities have a 
military base in their areas, and those sometimes are included 
in the calculations for that particular reason. 

3 



from a quality of 
perspective. 

life standpoint, and from a fiscal 

A third of our residents are Mount Laurel qualified. 
These are the taxpayers on whose backs the expense is 
balanced. We had 1000 units p l anned in COAH moving toward 
certification. At the time the 1000 cap was st ruck down, we 
shot up to 1850 units. We figured that that 1000 unit plan was 
going to cost us between $10 million and $12 million, which we 
budgeted over a six-year pe r i od . Th a t i s about a th i rd o f our 
capital budget every year that goes to pay for Mount Laurel. 
That is how it is impacting Middletown taxpayers, and we' re 
struggling. We' re really struggling to do what's right. We 
have a plan that is very, very close to certification right 
now, and this cap would certainly help us. It would help the 
taxpayers and the home owners of Middletown. 

I would like to add at the end of this that I have a 
statement here from Bill Dressel of the League of 
Municipalities. The League of Municipalities is in support of 
this legislation. We would appreciate your approval in moving 
it on to fruition. 

MR. AZZOLINA: One other comment: What bothered me, 
even with the Mount Laurel and COAH and these housing programs 
started six or seven years ago, was that towns like Middletown, 
Dover, Brick Township, Cherry Hi 11, and others-- Droves of 
people moved to these communities, before this time, because 
housing was affordable, and a lot of senior citizens still 
lived in their own homes. The more pressure we put on with 
this Mount Laurel -- with this type of housing-- It creates a 
burden on their senior citizens and on those young people who 
moved down here from other areas to find reasonable housing. 
In all our towns nearby we have zoning from 10,000 square feet 
up to maybe an acre-and-a-half. There are a few three acres. 
But there are other towns nearby that have three-, four-, and 
five-acre zones, and they get away scot-free. 
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600 units of subsidized senior citizen housing, through HUD 
financing primarily. It also had a model single-family program 
through which single-family homes were built on township-owned 
lots and were sold to low- and moderate-income fa mi lies with no 
down payment loans through the HMFA. We have 2 very active 
Community Development Department. We do a lot o f rehabs in 
substandard uni ts, and a 11 of this preceded t t who le Mount 
Laurel situation. 

Unf o rtunately, because of the way t::. f ormula was 
developed, Middletown really got socked with h iy h numbers. As 
a matter of fact, our initial quota was 1850 uni ts. In the 
Fair Housing Act there is a provision that no municipality 
shall have t o expend any municipal funds in o rder to provide 
affordable housing. Wel 1, with a quota of 18 50 uni ts, if we 
chose that approach, the only way to do it without spending 
municipal funds would be through a Builder s ' Remedy. That 
means that you take that quota and you multiply it times five 
and you get over 9000 housing uni ts out of that quota. In 
Middletown, it has taken over 300 years to reach about 22,000 
housing uni ts. So through this quota system, in a very, very 
short period of time, Middletown would have had to increase its 
housing stock by about 40 percent. There is no way you can 
tell me that that wouldn't cost the taxpayers a tremendous 
amount of money just to provide the infrastructure, the 
schools, etc. 

What I am suggesting is that somewhere from the Court 
decision to the Fair Housing Act to the regulatory system 
something went awry, and it is time for a correction to be made 
in that direction. That is really why we're here today, and 
that is really why we are asking you to take a hard look at the 
numbers, because the numbers were not realistic. There is no 
way that any municipality can provide that quantity of housing 
in a short period of time without devastating the town both 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: We are now going to listen to Mr. 
Newt Miller. He is a Mayor of one of the towns. 
MAYOR NEWTON E. MILLE R: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman, for giving me the opportunity t o come before you 
today and relate what Mount Laurel has done t o my town . 

Let me start off by saying, bac k i n 1984 and I -
happen to have a clipping he r e Assemb _ 1man Zecker and I 
sought to overturn the Mount Laurel decisi o r. . Well, as you can 
see, that didn't work very well, John. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY : I know. 
MAYOR MILLER: But I think the c omments made at that 

time are apropos for today also. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: How does t h is bill affect your 

town? 
MAYOR MILLER: This bill affec t s my town in this 

fashion: We were given a quota of 1564 units . COAH came out 
with the 1000 cap. We are in the courts over this. We have 
all the pieces put together. We had to give Paterson $9 
million bond $9 miilion for the RCAs. We have senior 
citizen projects involved. Everything is put together. It has 
been . put to bed. It is now waiting for the judge and the 
master to review this, and everything looks like we are ready 
to go. 

However, we also have immunity, so you can't use the 
Builders' Remedy to come in and upset us. However, we have JF 
in town. They are now coming in. They would like to build on 
their property, their 50 acres. Now, we may have the immunity 
on the Builders' Remedy, but they can sti 11 intervene on the 
basis of the 1000 cap being wrong. It should be the 1564 . 

Now, of course, the judge is going by the COAH 
ruling. Now the COAH ruling has been overturned. How JF would 
preva i 1 in court remains to be seen, where this bi 11 would 
prevent that from happening . 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: All right. Any questions from any 
member of the Committee? (no response) Mr. Green, do you have 
a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN G~EEN: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ,(ELLY: I have one: Mr. Wolfe, 

that military estab l~ s hments were included in COAH. 
happens when--

you said 
Now, what 

MR. AZZOL I t;A: They' re not. He made a mistake. We 
were trying to get 1em to count. 

ASSEMBLYMP . KELLY: Okay. I thought you said that. 
MR. AZZOLINA: No. We had Hudak put a bill in. We 

got it through the Assembly. We are trying to get--
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I do listen. 
MR. AZZO~ INA: Yeah. No, we are trying to get 

military housing t o count as a quota also--
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. 
MR. AZZOLINA: --because there are a lot of low-income 

sailors or soldiers who live in these homes. Some of them have 
to go on food stamps. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: And their children go to your 
schools? 

MR. AZZOLINA: And the children go to our schools, 
right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WOLFE: I think you' re correct. Perhaps 
the way I stated it was backwards. This is an example of what-
we would like to be included in the legislation, which right 
now is not included. This particular legislation would permit 
that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. I have no further questions. 
MR. AZZOLINA: That's it? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Yes. Thank you for your testimony. 
MR. AZZOLINA: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN WOLFE: Thank you. 
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just doesn't seem to be any end to this in our attempts to 
satisfy that which the Court has ruled on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: So you support this legislation? 
MAYOR M~LLER: I support this legislation, right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: The six-year review-- We can't do 

anything abou t that in this legislation. That will be 
something sep a : te. 

MAYOR MILLER: I understand that, John. As you told 
me with one 0 thos e other bills, "Come on back and amend it." 
That was wh a :: , eight years ago? I'm still waiting here to 
amend it, John . 

Thank you. Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Mr. Dressel, did that lady testify , 

for you? (n : response) He left? Good . He's finished . He is 
not going to testify. How about Rick Sauer? (no response) If 
I call your name and you're not here, I am not going to recall 
it. 
RICK SAUER: (speaking from audience) I was going to 
testify on the latter issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh, you're not on this one, okay. 
Jeff Surenian. 
JEFFREY R. SUREN I AN, ESQ.: I just have a 
few brief comments. I am in support of the legislation. I 
think there is a need for reasonable limitations. I represent 
a number of municipalities across the State with fair shares 
over 1000. Once the numbers start getting so large, it does a 
lot of things that are deleterious to the process. It takes 
forever to get together a plan, because it is very hard·to get 
together large plans. It generally forces municipalities to 
dig in their heels, ·because there is a limit as to what 
municipalities can deal with. 

I think it makes a lot more sense to impose reasonable 
1 imi ts, al low municipa 1 i ties to get together, and get behind a 
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As I say, I, personally, do not like it, but the law 
is the law and you have to abide by it. The great white 
fathers in the Supreme Court have issued this edict. They put 
it in the tablets as the 11th commandment, so we are stuck with 
it. So, we are living up to it. I just think enough is 
enough, and we should hold at the cap. 

There are a couple of other things I think should 
happen here. I don't know, I guess you can't do them on this 
bill . The things I would like to see happen are: The six-year 
review-- When you come back in for the six-year review, I 
don't believe that any town that has complied, or is complying 
with their requirements should be reviewed unti 1 after 
everybody else has been reviewed. When I say everybody, I mean 
those who have not complied, those who have not been affected 
by this Mount - Laurel decision in the entire State. Once 
everybody has complied and they are in the courts over it, or 
they are going a long in a pas it i ve fashion, then come back in 
and make your review. 

In my town, under Green Acres, we are just picking up 
some 1200 to 1500 acres of ground on the side of a mountain, 
setting that aside. Well, you know, that looks like open 
acreage as fa; as building is concerned, but it really isn't. 
You could also challenge the 64.9 percent for the Hudson, 
Bergen, and Passaic County requirements. I don't know how they 
came up with that percentage, but it's there. Did that include 
the 1500 acres as far as our town is concerned? 

I guess the bottom line I'm saying to you is, what 
we've got to do, I think, is to hold this where it is. Keep it 
at the 1000 cap. When everybody else has fulfilled their 
commitments, then 
change has been as 

come back in and review to see what the 
far as population and the availability of 

property are concerned. 
In Wayne, as I said, 

dollars for legal fees so far, 
it has cost us a half a million 

and we're still at it. There 
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MR. LEE: We need a motion first on the amendments, as 
they were described. 

Hartmann? 

it ? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Who is making the motion, you, Mr. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN : I am. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: He made the motion . 

ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 
MR. LEE: I have it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: 

Second. 
Do you have that? 

The motion to amend : 
You know the answer. 

Who seconds 

Mr. Green? 
Everybody 

says, "Aye." Aye. 

stickler. 

MR. LEE: Mr. Hartmann? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes . 
UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: 

MR. LEE: Mr. Gaffney? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Si. Aye . 
MR. LEE: Mr. Corodemus? 

Mr. Lee is a 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: He is in caucusing . 
MR. LEE: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: He voted; yes, he voted. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes, he voted "Yes" on the 

amendments. 
MR. LEE: And Mr. Kelly? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Yes. 
MR. LEE: On the bill? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Is that where we go next, the bill? 
MR. LEE: On the motion to release the bill as 

amended: Mr. Green? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Hartmann? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Corodemus? 
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real plan for 1000, rather than expecting the world of them and 
leaving them no choice but to fight. 

I also think that the bi 11 is favorable because it 
addresses the concerns that were raised by the Court when it 
struck the 1000 unit cap regulation adopted by the Council on 
Affordable Housing. It eliminates any question as to whether 
the Legislature intended to permit municipalities to limit 
their fair share at 1000. In addition to that, it makes it 
clear that the limit is related to the facts and 
circumstances. It has language in the legislation such that if 
someone came in and proved that based upon past activities the 
number could go beyond 1000, that a municipality under that 
limited circumstances might be subjected to a greater number. 
So it addresses the concerns raised by the Court, and I think 
in a legally defensible way. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Who else? Paul Mat acer a, do you 

want to testify on this bill, or on the rules? 
M A Y O R P A U L M A T A C E R A: ( speaking from 
audience) On the rules, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. 
MAYOR MATACERA: But I can tell you this, as Past 

President of the League-- Dressel just told me that the League 
supports the bill, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh, good. All right. Art . 
Bernard, do you want to testify? 
ART BERN ARD: Well, I'm here along with Paul. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Just for the rules? 
MR. BERNARD: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: That's it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Mr. Chairman, do we have anybody 

in opposition on this particular bill? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: No, nobody wants to testify 

against the bill. All right, what are the amendments? Let's 
get the amendments straight. Let's get going here. 
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MR. LEE: Mr. Kelly? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Yes. 
We are going to go into the rules. Are we ready? 

(affirmative response) Okay. Who wants to testify first? How 
about Art Bernard? 

Council 
MAYOR MATACERA: There are four 
on Affordable Housing . We all 

of us 
have 

statements, and then Art and Doug Opalski can 
We'll bring up some chairs. 

here from the 
kind of sma 11 

do a lot of--

What I would like to do is introduce, if I may, the 
four people who will be here. Assemblyman, they are: Ara 
Hovnanian, who is one of the charter members of COAH; myself, 
as a member a recent member; Doug Opalski, Executive 
Director; and Art Bernard, the Deputy Director. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You have the floor. Go ahead. 
MAYOR MATACERA: I am going to let Ara speak first, 

Assemblyman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I'm easy. 
MAYOR MATACERA: We know. 

AR A HOV HA HI AH: As the Mayor indicated, I am one of 
the original COAH members. I guess I have had the honor of 
going through the process six or seven years ago for the first 
time from scratch, then having to live with it for the next six 
years as we reviewed plans that were given to us in accordance 
with our first methodology. 

The Council members, although they have been changing 
through the years, have been a very di verse group. We are 
composed of Republicans and Democrats. We have representation 
from nonprofit-- Excuse me. We have representation from the 
cities, from the suburbs, and from the rural areas. We have 
representation from the northern part of the State, the 
southern part, the eastern and the western parts of the State. 
We have representatives from 
from county elected positions. 

municipally elected 
We have had State 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Gaffney? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Kelly? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Yes. 
MS. SMARTH (Assembly Majority Staff): Everything is 

t aken c are o f , right? 
MR. LEE: Well, you have the Senate bill. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay, let's get the Senate bi 11 

out. It is the same identical bill. 
MR. LEE: Identica 1. Does not have to be amended, so 

we can go straight to the--
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: I move the Senate bi 11, I 

guess . Why do we have to move the Senate bill? 
UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: Mr. Chairman, what 

are we doing with the Senate bill? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: It is the 

Committee 
same identical 
speaking at 

bill. 
once; (several members of the 

indiscernible to transcriber) 
UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER 

merged? 
OF COMMITTEE: Can't they be 

MR. LEE: I understand that they will be merged on the 
floor, since they are identical. 

Green? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Okay. I move the bill. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Second. 
MR. LEE: On the motion to release favorably: Mr. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Hartmann? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Gaffney? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Yes. 
MR. LEE: Mr. Corodemus? 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Yes. 
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employment growth, vacant land, and, of course, based on some 
of the benefits of our experience over the few years . Again, 
you will hear more about the details of that in just a minute. 

I am not going to say our proposed methodology, or as 
we are discussing it now , is pe r fec t . There clearly is no such 
thing when you are dealing with such diverse interest groups as 
we have to deal with here. To try t o achieve some improvement s 
upon it would take so many more dollars and so much more time 
than we have, that it wouldn' t be viable. I think what we are 
discussing right now is an excel l ent overall plan. 

I feel reasonably good because we have gotten comments 
from the three diverse groups, again, the housing advocates, 
the municipalities, and the developers. We know we are doing a 
good job if none of them are entirely happy, and that is 
generally the case . 

I can say that it is a methodology which our group --
which, again, is composed of three different people, 
including: the Past President of the League of Municipalities , 
an additional Mayor from another town, a home builder, a 
director of the HMFA, a planner from the three county -- a 
nonprofit planner from a director of a planning agency from 
three counties, and a member of a nonprofit housing advocacy 
group-- We have jointly agreed that the methodology we are 
currently embarking upon is a fair way to accomplish our 
constitutional obligations. 

With that, I would like to turn it over to the Mayor 
to go a little bit more into deta i l. 

MAYOR MATACERA: Thank you. Assemblyman Kelly -- Mr. 
Chairman thank you very much for the opportunity to be here 
-- and also the other members of the Committee. 

Assemblyman Kelly knows me I have testified here 
before and knows of my 
bring you up-to-date as to 
place. Ara alluded to it. 

involvement. I would just like to 
how I got to COAH in the first 

It is amazing how fast you become a 
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appointees, since by statute the Director of MHFA is 
Board, and we have representation, as I was saying 
from the nonprofit organizations, from various 
advocates, and I, myself, am the lone representative 
building industry on the Council. 

on our 
earlier, 
planning 

of the 

What has been amazing, I think, is that when the 
Council members have gotten together, coming from such diverse 
backgrounds, when we have been given all of the information --
and there has been a lot of information; I think we have had 
close to 50 meetings in the last year alone t hey almost 
always come to unanimous conclusions on almost every issue that 
is before us, including the issues of the methodologies. I 
think that is an amazing statement for such a diverse group of 
interests as our Council is composed of. 

Our task, essentially, is to accomplish our 
constitutional mandate, while balancing the needs of housing 
advocates, municipalities, and the development community, to 
make it all happen. Believe me, balancing the needs of those 
three diverse groups is no easy challenge. 

The new methodology we are talking about and you 

are going to hear a little bit more about it in just a moment 
-- is different from the current one in three basic ways: 

1) It depends, and is based upon the new State Plan, 
which is quite different from the old one -- and that obviously 
has its repercussions on our plan -- and it does so by statute, 
by the way. 

2) We have to take into account act ions that were 
precipitated by the previous methodology. Obviously, our 
current methodology didn't have to have that factor taken into 
account, since there was no previous methodology to our current 
one. 

3) Finally, 
met ho do logy based on the 
census data, based on 

the current one has refined the 
new information from the most recent 
newer and better ways to measure 
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I looked at it from the standpoint of the entire State as 
League President, as an immediate Past President, and as an 
advocate of the League of Municipalities, which I always wi 11 
be, in no matter what I ever do. I also knew that I had to 
represent the urban and the rural perspectives on this Council 
as to what the fair housing needs are going to be as we develop 
in our State. 

There were several things that I believe were critical 
to my support of the COAH numbers and procedures, and this is 
what we have been talking about over the last few months. One 
would be that the municipal allocation for 1993 through 1999 
must be reasonable. In our efforts to address the housing 
needs of lower income households, we cannot choke 
municipalities by overwhelming their infrastructure capacity 
and drastically altering the character of the community. If 
the resultant allocations are not 
of getting municipal cooperation 

reasonable, then our chances 
are totally• reduced . So, 

reasonableness of the numbers is my first concern. 
Another concern as a Mayor who has chosen to meet his 

allocation through a combination of inclusionary housing 
developments and municipal construction of senior citizen 
housing projects, and as an immediate Past President of the 
League, it is critical to me that the municipality be given 
great flexibility and choice on how to address its needs. The 
numbers must factor in the amount of vacant land in a 
municipality, so that the numbers reflect the municipa 1 i ty.' s 
realistic capacity to absorb new housing construction. 
Information on vacant land has been gathered through the use of 
satellite photos, and was a key factor utilized in allocating 
the perspective housing need within each region. 

The fourth item is something that I think is also 
critical. It is critical to the municipalities that complied 
with COAH by adopting housing elements and zoning ordinances, 
and received full credit for their actions, regardless of 
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Past President. But, last year, I was honored to be the 
President of the New Jersey State League of Municipalities. I 
serve now as the immediate Past President. I am also the Mayor 
of North Brunswick Township, which is what one would consider a 
developing suburban community in the central part of the State. 

The Governor appointed me toward the latter . part of 
1 ast year, and the Senate confirmed it in the early part of 
this year, and I began sitting on COAH as a Mayor who had 
complied. However, I had to comply in the courts, because 
there was no COAH and no Fair Housing Act back in 1984 when we 
had some 1 it igations in our town, which I have created under 
the old Builders' Remedy. We were looking at a 2000-unit, 
lower income scenario, which equated to about a 10,000-unit 
situation in our community. So, we would have doubled the size 
of our town prior to COAH, under the old Builders' Remedy 
litigations of Mount Laurel II. 

We decided to then settle with the lawsuits and we 
settled, we thought, in a real good way. We were able to get a 
reasonable number. We were also able to put in some 
nonresidential. So it gives you some background as to who Paul 
Matacera is, and one of the reasons why, I guess, the Governor 
and the Legislature, in their wisdom, appointed me, nominated 
me, and confirmed me to sit on COAH. 

When I got to COAH in the earlier part of this year, 
COAH had a 1 ready begun the public hearings and a lot of the 
methodology programming, so I did a lot of catch-up in the last 
11 months. I participated in the task force that had begun 
doing some things. In doing that; with the support of the 
League being one of the reasons why I was appointed to COAH, I 
knew that I had a responsibility to look at, and to participate 
in, putting forward the municipal perspective. I believe I 
have done that. 

But, I also looked at it not only from North 
Brunswick's standpoint as a developing suburban community, but 
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These are just some brief comments and some ideas on 
where I am coming from representing the municipal perspective 
on the Council on Affordable Housing. 

Chairman, with your permission, I would like to turn 
it over to Doug Opalski, who is our Executi v e Director . 
DOUGLAS OPALS KI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If 
the Committee would like, I would like to--

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: 
recorded to be transcribed . 
microphone over. 

You will have 

MR. OPALSKI: I see. Thank you. 

This 
to 

is being 
slide the 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: See, we want to get this on paper, 
so we know what we are talking about. 

MR. OPALSKI: I would like to bring you up to speed as 
to how we got to the stage we are at, and do that very quickly 
so that we can spend the rest of the time going over a 
framework that you, Mr. Chairman, wanted for discussion 
purposes. Art Bernard will gi ve us tha t framework, the de t a i ls 
that Paul alluded to, as a point of departure. 

I thank you for this opportunity. We would like to 
briefly describe to you an intensive pub l ic relations process 
in order to bring forward the best input we could get so that 
the rules that are emerging would be balanced, would be 
workable, would be more realistic than we have seen in the 
past. Given the market shifts that have occurred, we felt it 
was important to extend this process and dialogue. So, in 
January of 1991, we came forward with what Ara has alluded to 
as an "Issue Paper." What this Issue Paper did was to identify 
the options in all of the policy areas in our method and in the 
way in which the fair share may be derived from the calculated 
need. 

This Issue Paper was distributed to each and every 
municipal representative, all o f the towns, all of the major 
stakeholders who are part of our process. It was distributed 
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whether any low-income housing 
their borders; in other words, 
to step up to the plate 

was actually constructed within 
municipalities that had the guts 
and comply with COAH. Those 

requirements must get a full one-to-one credit for every lower 
income housing unit that they made possible, and cannot be 
penalized for the failure of the private sector to actually 
construct the units. Anything less than a full one-to-one 
credit would discourage further compliance. 

We have been talking about other incentives; about 
other ways of looking to substantiate and f ac i 1 i ta te RCAs so 
that we can do that. We are looking at how the regions have 
been set up and are able to facilitate RCAs. These are all 
mechanisms and ways by which municipalities can feel 
comfortable that they can come to COAH and be able to look at 
the flexibility involved -- if there is a case-by-case issue 
that needs to be discussed, we will discuss it -- to be able to 
look at where we have to go and, in the words of a former 
President, we want to be a kinder, gentler COAH. (laughter) 

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: Still President. 
MAYOR MATACERA: Still President. Pardon me. 
All kidding aside, COAH has received a bad rap for not 

having those types of flexibilities. I think they are 
necessary. Reasonableness of numbers is important. I think we 
have to be able to facilitate reasons why municipalities would 
want to come and step forward. The main reason, as someone 
pointed out ear lier, that a lot of uni ts have not been bui 1 t, 
is because we have been locked into the process of either the 
courts or the mediation process. Then again, if we did not 
have COAH or the Fair Housing Act, we would all be in the 
courts at this point in time, rather than being in an agency 
that can help to . adjudicate and mediate and be able to get to 
some reasonableness of numbers using some of the criteria that 
I have put forward. 
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Technically defensible, I believe that what we are 
doing is arriving at a series of need numbers that will be a 
very positive approach to this need in New Jersey, and wi 11 
allow us to continue from the method that we are moving from. 

The full Council needs to decide those guidelines. 
That has not been done as yet. The Council, as a whole, a 
quorum, has yet to decide on methodology. What we would like 
to do is present to you the directions that that methodology is 
taking in more detail, and give you a basis to raise concerns 
that we can take back to the full Council. 

For that purpose, I would like to turn it over to Art 
Bernard, our Deputy Director, to walk us through this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Is this what you are going to 
read? (holding up copy of written statement) 

MR. BERNARD: I am not going to read anything. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh, okay. 
MR. BERNARD: I'm going to talk. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You may talk. You've gqt the 

floor. 
MR. BERNARD: What I would like to do is pass out 

these handouts which might help you to go through some things 
which, quite frankly, a re technica 1 no matter how I try to 
simplify them. 

While you are passing that out, I would just like 
to-- Doug talked about the working group and all the public 
input that went into all the rules the Council is considering, 
including the numbers. I just want to emphasize how helpful 
that input was and how grateful we all are for the time and 
effort people gave us. 

I think that when one starts to talk about the 
numbers, you know, we have to be mindful that all this is based 
in some Court decisions, and I think I have to establish some 
principles that came out of the Court system, and also define 
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to each and every legislator. We wanted to be able to get your 
reaction to it. Following that, two months later, we had three 
public meetings. At those public meetings we received input, 
and then we kept the record open for another month and we 
received additional written input from the public at large. 
That led us to the formulation of a working group that was 
composed 
Planning 

of: the League of Municipalities, the Federation of 
Officials, the Alliance for Affordable Housing, 

consulting planners, those people who consult with you and your 
municipalities, the court masters, the Civic League of Greater 
New Brunswick, the Affordable Housing Network of New Jersey, 
the nonprofit sponsors, the Association of Environmental 
Commissions, the New Jersey Home Builders Association, the 
Center for Urban Po 1 icy Research at Rutgers University, and a 
number of other major State departments which have a stake in 
the work of COAH; that is, DCA, HMFA, the Department of 
Commerce, the Department of Envi ronmenta 1 Protect ion, and the 
State Planning Commission. 

We went through a process of about 18 meetings with 
that working group to narrow the options down and to digest the 
input we had gotten from the public through our public hearings 
and the written input. 

In August of '91, all of that boiled down option and 
refined input 
talking about, 
very closely 

was provided to the task force that Paul was 
which is a subgroup of the Counci 1. We work . 
together with the Center for Urban Policy 

Research, our consultant in this process, to, in fact, take 
these refined options and put them into a format ·that is 
interlocking, that is mutually supportive, that yields the kind 
of method that we believe would meet the tests that Paul put on 
the table. They would be reasonable; they would be doable. 
These numbers would be digestible from a municipal point of 
view, and, in fact, they could be achieved. 
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else's res pons ibi 1 i ty." What the Court did was say, "Some of 
this housing remains the responsibility of the municipality 
where poor are in substandard housing," and that part of the 
need was called "indigenous need." The part that became 
someone else's responsibility was thrown into a housing region 
and was called "reallocated present need." Okay? You're 
looking at me like you're--

MR. CIFELLI (Assembly Minari ty Staff): No, I'm with 
you. 

MR. BERNARD: Okay. So, you are looking at the two 
building blocks of need. The Court sets up indigenous need and 
reallocated present need, and both of those are a function of 
what the census shows. 

The third building block of need is called 
"prospective need." Prospective need, to put it simply, is a 
projection. Population projections are converted into 
household projections. If you think about who we are serving 
here, we are serving low- and moderate-income people; people 
who earn 80 percent of median. Well, median means that half of 
the people earn more and half of the people earn less. We are 
talking about people who are 80 percent of median, so when we 
are doing this household project ion, almost by definition 4 0 
percent of our projection is for low- and moderate-income 
people. Okay? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: May I ask you a question--
MR. BERNARD: Sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS : --about the prospective need? 

How are you calculating that? It is not based on an increase 
in population. It is not based on an assumption that income 
levels will be declining. How do you calculate that? 

MR. BERNARD: Wel 1, we might be able to go into that 
in more detail a little bit later with Bob Burchell, but I may 
be able to satisfy you. Basically, we took a projection of 
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some terms. If we are going to understand this at all, we have 
to understand what some terms mean. 

After the Mount Laurel II decision, there were basic 
components of need, I guess, that the Court established. The 
Court said that every municipality in the State is responsible 
for substandard units occupied by low- and moderate-income 
households. So the first step in determining the municipal 
obligation is coming up with estimates of deteriorated units 
occupied by low- and moderate-income households by each 
municipality. We do that through the use of the census. 

Having done that, the Court went further, and said 
that some communities had accepted more of the poor than 
others, and therefore they limited the responsibi-lity of 
municipalities that had high levels of substandard units 
occupied by the poor. They limited the responsibility based on 
a regional standard. Now, in the handout I gave you, in 
Exhibit A, you see how the Court defined this regional 
standard. What the Court did, for each municipality and for 
each housing region, was come up with a ratio that is defined 
by the substandard units occupied by the poor, and they divided 
that by the total occupied housing stock. That came to some 
sort of percentage. Let's say 5 percent of the region's 
housing stock was occupied by the poor in substandard housing. 
That became a regional standard. 

So, to the extent that a municipality had people in 
substandard housing, they were responsible for that obligation 
up to the regional standard. Now, there are places, typically 
the urban centers -- and let's use Newark as an example that 
because they had accepted a lot of the poor, have a lot of poor 
in substandard housing. If one does that ratio for Newark, it 
is much higher than 5 percent. All right? 

What the Court did was limit towns like Newark to that 
5 percent, and say: "If you have poor who are living in 
substandard uni ts above that 5 percent, that becomes someone 
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went to places called "growth areas" in the State Development 
Guide Plan. This time, most of it wi 11 go into areas with 
infrastructure, if you are familiar with the State Plan 
planning areas 1 and 2. But every area is expected to accept 
some of the regional need as it grows. 

Another goal we had and you have probab l y heard 
about this -- is, we wanted to have a better fit between the 
need that we assigned and the municipal capacity to absorb that 
need, if we were going to define "capacity" in terms of land. 
So, what we wanted to hear-- We wanted numbers which were more 
sensitive to the amount of land in the community, and also the 
goals that the State Planning Commission had for that community 
as the community had developed itself through the State 
Planning Commission's process, and of course we wanted every 
community to get a one-to-one credit for what they did. 

So, let's go back aod take a look at these numbers on 
Exhibit D that add up to 199,966 units. That was an expression 
of need. Up to that point what the Counci 1 had done was not 
all that different from what the courts that had preceded the 
Council had done. The Council recognized that the private 
market can accommodate some of that need. They recognized that 
sound units change hands and become available to low- and 
moderate-income households. This is called "filtering." I'm 
sure some of you have heard of it. Communities that had 
accepted a lot of garden apartments, that accepted a lot of 
poor in the past, did get a substantial credit and continued to 
get a substantial credit as a result of filtering. 

Conversion& take place over time that benefit low- and 
moderate-income households. 
the poor are fixed up over 
the Council was able to do, 

Unsound units that are occupied by 
time, perhaps by a landlord. What 
through its consultant and looking 

at all the census information, was to not only project growth 
in households, but project how much of the need the private 
sector would be able to accommodate. As a result of that 
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population over time, and we converted that into a projection 
of households. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Assuming a statewide increase 
in population? 

MR. BERNARD: Reg ionwide increases in-- Yes; to make 
it simple, yes. Okay? 

MR. HOVNANIAN: That is not a projection that was made 
by the staff. That was made by the State. 

MR. BERNARD: By the Department of Labor. All right? 
So, if you look at what the Council did between 1987 and 1993 
in Exhibit B, we've got these three building blocks of need 
that are quantified. The census showed that there was an 
indigenous need of 85,134. The census showed that there was a 
reallocated present need of 34,411. We projected a need of 
80,421 households in the future. That came up with a total 
statewide need of almost 200,000 units. Okay? So that is 
where we were in 
complicated as 
building blocks 
and the third 

'93. I just want to emphasize again that as 
this may seem, you know, that t wo of the 
are just a function of what the census shows, 
building block is just a func t ion of the 

projections that were used at the time. 
Now, in getting ready for this round of n umbers-- You 

know, Paul alluded to some of the goals that the Counci 1 had. 
He talked about how important it should be for them to be 
reasonable. One of the things that is bui 1 t into the Mount 
Laurel decision, is that the allocation of numbers should be 
directed by a State Plan. This State Plan is clearly a growth 
management document that encourages development in areas that 
have the capacity to handle it; places with infrastructure. 
But clearly also, in this State Plan there is language that 
says, "Every municipality will grow, and as it grows it should 
accept a portion of the region's housing need." There was, the 
last time, this regional need. Regional need is the 
reallocated present need and the prospective need. It only 
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growth in New Jersey. It didn't happen. So, the approach to 
the Counci 1' s considering-- The Counci 1 figured, "Wel 1, if we 
projected all this growth from '87 to '93 and it didn't happen, 
then municipalities shouldn't be responsible for it." So we 
are scaling it back -- that '87 to '93 need based on what 
actually happened. A little more than half of it happened. 

To tha t number we are adding a projection of '93 to 
'99 need, which is based on the more conservative projections 
that a re pa rt o f the State Planning Commission's plan; also, 
the same projections have been folded into the Department o f 
Community Affairs' Community Housing Assistance Strategy. 

So the results of what we are considering doing are 
'87 to '99 estimates of need, which again would be tempered by 
the Council's estimate of the private sector's ability to 
respond to some of that need. If the Council is looking at an 
'87 to '99 need, then it seems to make sense that every 
community should get credit for what they did. So, that 
one-to-one credit that Paul was talking about--

I would suggest to you that, in genera l , those 
communities that did a lot last time will ha v e much less to do 
this time, because the estimates of subst andard housing are 
less; the '87 to '93 projections are scaled b ack; and the '93 
to '99 projections are much more reasonable. Those communities 
that chose not to participate may have more reasonable numbers 
for the same reasons, but they will have relatively more to do 
because they won't have the one-to-one credits available to the 
communities that stepped forw..._!3rd and addressed the Mount Laurel 
obligation. 

That is a basic discussion 
regional need, which the Legislature 
make the definition simpler, no less 

of establishing this 
defined as-- Wel 1, to 

than two, nor more than 
four contiguous counties. Th.en you have to bring that need 
down to the municipal level. In terms of indigenous need, we 
can do that with the census, but in terms of the rea I located 
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census analysis, the Council said that over 54,000 units of 
that need could be addressed by the private· sector, and what 
was left, that 145,707 number, was the municipal obligation. 

Take a look at that 145,000 number, and it is still 
br o ken down into those three building blocks we started with. 
Some of it is indigenous need; some of it is reallocated 
present need; and some of it is prospective need. Again, two 
of those building blocks are based on the census. The 
indigenous need and the reallocated present need were estimated 
using the census variables that were available at the time, 
which you see in Exhibit C. 

We are at a point now where we don't have to rely on 
the 1980 census anymore: The 1990 census is out, and the 
Council has reason to believe that if communities are going to 
be responsible for estimates of substandard housing, they 
should be responsible for those estimates that are based on the 
best and the most recent data available the 1990 census. 
So, the 1990 estimat e s of substandard uni ts which form the 
basis of the indigeno us need calculation and the reallocated 
present need calculati o n will replace the 1980 estimates. 

Now, I am no t exactly sure why. I know that the 
census isn't collect ing quite the same indicators of 
substandard housing as they were in 1980. Now, whether it is 
because of that, or whether it is because we have had some 
substantial rehabilitation activity during the '80s, or whether 
it is because demolitions have done away with the worst of our 
housing stock, the estimates of substandard housing that become 
the basis of the indigenous need and the reallocated present 
need are lower. 

The third building block of need is prospective need. 
When you get up to that 199,000, 80,000 of it was a projection 
of growth from '87 to '93. That projection was done by the 
Department of Labor. Even using the most conservative 
projections around at the time, we were projecting tremendous 
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the Department of Labor to the cent ra 1 off ice, even though a 
lot of it is in the branches. Sometimes we don't even get the 
address of the employer; we get the address of the accounting 
firm that filled out the form. 

So, as a result of this, there were errors that 
resulted in unfair allocations to communities, which we tried 
to correct once we got into the process. But it took a lot of 
time; it cost people money; and we thought maybe we could do 
this a better way. It was suggested that maybe, instead of 
using covered jobs, when we are not sure if we have the right 
address, we use nonresidential rat ables equalized 
nonresidential ratables. It was suggested that that would 
maintain a strong link between jobs and housing, which the 
Court said was important, and would also reinforce the link 
between accepting ratables and the responsibility for housing 
the poor. 

Now, there was some resistance to this because the 
Court had singl e d out jobs as something the Council should 
allocate need by . But it was suggested by the same people that 
if there is a s t rong link between nonresioential ratables and 
jobs, it would c ertainly be appropriate to make that switch. 
There is a stron g link, and the Council is strongly considering 
making that shift to nonresidential ratables. 

The income factor: Again, it is aggregate per capita 
income. This was to be a measure of the municipal capacity to 
accept the need, and it was thought that the wealthier 

~ommunities had more of a responsibility and a greater capacity 
to accept the poor. But this aggregate income factor was a 
function of population, as well as wealth, so some communities 
that had perhaps housed a lot of people, that had accepted a 
great diversity of housing types, got higher allocations 
because they had done so, so that is clearly not what the 
Council intended. So, what we are thinking about now is 
allocating need more on differences in wealth; differences 
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present need and the prospective-- These two pools have to be 
allocated down to the municipal level. We had to come up with 
a way to do that. The last time we distributed that need based 
on -- if you go to Exhibit D, and again I have simplified this 
somewhat-- We took this regional need and we distributed it to 
municipalities based on regional shares of covered employment, 
land and growth area that's that old State Development Guide 
Plan term -- and a factor called "aggregate per capita income," 
which is defined as per capita income times the population. 
Okay? 

Now, I have given you an ex amp le of what a reg ion a 1 
share is. For example, if a community had 50 jobs in its 
borders, or 100 jobs in its borders, and there were 1000 jobs 
in the reg ion, then that munic ipa 1 i ty had a tent}:l of the jobs 
in the region, so that was its regional share of jobs. Jobs 
were important because the Court had said how important the 
link between jobs and housing was. All right? So what we did 
was take a reg ion a 1 share of each of these factors, aver aged 
them up, came up with one regional share, and multiplied that 
average regional share times these regional pools of need, to 
come up with a need at the municipal level. And, it worked. 
Basically I think the Council felt it was sound. When it was 
appealed to the Appellate Division and higher, the Court upheld 
all of this. But that doesn't mean that there weren't 
problems; it doesn't mean that the Council can't do it better. 

example, 
data is 
reasons. 
address 

So, we took a look at each of those factors. For 
the covered employment factor. Covered employment 

collected by the Department of Labor for insurance 
They are not terribly concerned with the precise 

of the employer. Sometimes they don't get the right 
address, because an employer likes to use a prestigious 
address, or the employer is in a township and gets its mail at 
a post office box, or because the employer has a central office 
and a bunch of branches and he assigns all the employment for 
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When we looked at alternatives in putting together a 
data base of undeveloped land around the State, we first 
thought about piecing together municipal existing land use 
maps, but we realized that the municipal existing land use--
Some municipalities classify land somewhat differently. We 
just didn't have the staff to do -- to complete the job in a 
timely manner. We thought about interpreting aerials, and we 
realized we didn't have the staff to do that in a timely 
manner. We thought about using tax records, and we realized 
that even if we could get them, they are not available by State 
Planning Commission planning area. 

Then we looked at the existing geographic information 
system. DEPE has a great one. They 

done. But, unfortunately, it is going 
have about five counties 
to b~ at least five more 
So that wasn't available years, if they can finish this job. 

to us either. It that we looked at land 
This is something that I became aware of 

was at that point 
satellite imagery. 
years ago. There is 
complete picture of 
used primarily for 
difference between 

a sa tel 1 i te that is capable of ta king a 
New Jersey every nine days. It has been 
agricultural purposes. It can tell the 
corn and soybeans. It can tell the 

difference between a pine tree and a deciduous tree. It has 
been used to map the spread of gypsy moth defoliation around 
the country. We figured that if it can do that, it ought to be 
able to tell us if land is developed or not, and that is all we 
asked it to do. 

We commissioned Cook College to do a demonstration. 
We checked it out empirically with aerials, and we found that 
it classified most land correctly. Where we found that it had 
trouble was in some mature residential areas where trees had 
farmed a canapy over the houses, and rather than coming up 
developed, it was coming up as forested area. What we were 
able to do was merge the census information with the satellite 
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between a specific community's median income and the median 
income of the poorest community in the housing region. 

Then there was the growth area factor. As I discussed 
before, it was land in the growth area that was important. We 
actually measured it with a p 1 animeter. It wasn't the amount 
of undeveloped land in the community. 

You're looking at me. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 

Do you want me to speed this up? 
No, no, no. I'm listening very 

c arefully to what you're saying. 
MR. BERNARD: Okay, okay. 

undeveloped--
It was not the amount of 

MAYOR MATACERA: If the Assemblyman wanted you to 
speed it up, he would let you know. 

MR. BERNARD:. It wasn't the amount of undeveloped land 
in the community; it was just the amount of land. It didn't 
make any difference if it was developed or not. There was a 
good reason for that: There is just no data base statewide on 
undeveloped land that we could take a regional share of. As we 
beg an thinking about this, maybe three years ago, we rea 1 i zed 
there was still no such data base, and we thought about 
creating our own. We realized we had certain things that we 
had to get out of the data base. The land had to be classified 
consistently so that we could develop regional shares for each 
community. We had to get the data available. We had to get it 
in time to run a number, which was not easy. And we also . 
needed not only undeveloped land, but it had to be sensitive to 
the State Planning Commission's goals for each planning area. 
So we had to have undeveloped land by State Planning Commission 
planning area. If you think about that, most of the 
undeveloped land is in planning areas 4 and 5 that the State 
wants to preserve. The Planning Commission wants to preserve 
farmland and protect environmentally sensitive areas, so, you 
know, it is very important to know what planning area the 
undeveloped land is in. 
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To summarize this approach we are considering very 
quickly, we are looking at a methodology that builds off what 
the Council did between '87 and '93. We are thinking about 
replacing the indigenous need estimates and the reallocated 
present need estimates that were based on the '80 census with 
'90 census information. We are talking about scaling back 
these '87 to '93 projections based on the growth that actually 
occurred, and adding to that a projection of '93 to '99 need 
that may be more conservative and consistent with the State 
Plan and the State's CHAS -- the State's Comprehensive Housing 
Af f ordabi 1 i ty Strategy. It also provides a one-to-one credit 
for everything the communities have done, and allocates need 
based on equa 1 ized nonresident i a 1 r a tables, income differences, 
and undeveloped land by municipa l ity and planning area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Anybody else? Are you finished, 
all of you? 

MAYOR MATACERA: Assemblyman, at this time we would 
just like to say thank you. 

Art will answer questions; we will answer questions. 
We will take as much time as you would like. I know this is 
kind of a lot of feeding of information to get at one shot. We 
would like to make our staff open to your staff and yourself--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: That's fine. 
MAYOR MATACERA: --and we will go on from there, sir . 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: That's excellent. 
MR. BERNARD: We also have Dr. Burchell from the 

Center for Urban Policy Research, our consultant, if need be to 
help us with the questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 
crucifixion, or, you know, 
interrogation, whatever. 

Your need in 1987 

you have here. 
MR. BERNARD: Yes. 

Anybody can help. This is not a 
whatever you want to call it-~ an 

to '93 was 199,000. That is what 
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imagery. Where the census said it was developed, we just let 
the census override the satellite. 

What emerged from that were 
undeveloped land by municipality. 
Commission finished their job and 

consistent estimates of 
When the State Planning 

actually digitized the 
planning areas, we were able to merge that with the data we 
had, and then we had undeveloped land by municipality by 
planning area. What this allowed us to do was be sensitive to 
the goals of the State Planning Commission, which again was 
saying that every municipality shall grow, or can grow, and as 
it grows it should accept some of this regional need. But most 
of it should go into areas that either have infrastructure or 
can have its infrastructure extended. 

So, we weighted undeveloped land based on the planning 
area. If we had undeveloped land in planning areas 1 and 2, 
areas with infrastructure, we weighted it by a factor of one. 
If we had undeveloped land in planning area 3, which by 
definition infrastructure can be extended fr om plan n ing area 2, 
we weighted it by a factor of a half, and if we had undeveloped 
land in planning areas 4 and 5, we discounted it. We 
multiplied it by zero. That way, municipaliti e s that have 
planning areas 4 and 5 would only get a need to the extent that 
they had accepted ratables, or as a function of their wealth, 
and they should get very small shares of need, which makes 
sense because there isn't the infrastructure in place ri ght now. 

We think that as a result of what we have done, we 
have developed an ability to be more sensitive to the municipal 
capacity in a way that is also sensitive to the State Plan. 
But we know this thing isn't perfect. We know that the land 
satellite overstates the amount of land in a given 
municipality. The things it does, 
community, so we believe we have 
regional shares of undeveloped land. 
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MR . BERNARD : Well, when we come back in six years, 
let's see how--

MAYOR MATACERA: Mr . Chairman, I think you have seen 
now where there is some data base to what we are trying to do 
versus in 1987, when you were to l d by the courts, and then by 
the Legislature, to create something and take some data base on 
the 1980 census, which is halfway el i gible. We were all 
looking at estimates of housing and other things through the 
boom of the '80s. I think we ha ve a better data base now, and 
a lot more personal, or practical 
going on over the last six years, 
these numbers. 

involvement in what has been 
to be able to come up with 

MR. HOVNANIAN: I think it is important to keep in 
mind the ratios that Art is talking abo u t with the old numbers 
and the · new 
evenly in 

numbers. They do not necessarily play across 
every municipality. That varies tremendously 

depending upon a lot of factors, inc 1 uding, again, where it 
lies in the State Development Guide Plan. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Could I a sk y ou what population 
indication you are going to use for th a t growth, or you don't 
have that yet? 

MR. HOVNANIAN: I think Bob is probably the best 
person-- Can you help us? 

MAYOR MATACERA: Why don't you slide up, Bob? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: The population growt h-- What base 

line are you going to use? 
DR. ROBERT BURCHELL: Well, they are using the 
State Department of Labor's projection. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Well, their projections the last 
time were pretty outlandish. 

DR~ BURCHELL: Right, but one le a rns as a result of 
hindsight. You're absolutely right. Indeed ; y o u have the 1990 
census to ca 1 ibrate your project ion methodologies even more. 
As a result of that you can get a much more accurate 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Now, what have you changed? Yo u 
changed the prospective need, the indigenous need to come u p 
with final figures. 

MR. BERNARD: Well, actually--
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you have figures that we c a n 

talk about, or you don't have that yet? 
MR. BERNARD: We don't have the final figures yet. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: When will we get them? 
MR . BERNARD: I would hope within two months. 
MS. SMARTH: Will the-- I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Go ahead. Anybody can a s k 

questions. If they can ask questions, we can ask questions. 
MS. SMARTH: Will the overall-- Even though you don't 

have the specif i c numbers, based on the parameters you have 
established in your testimony, the total number for the housing 
need for the new cycle, '93 to '99-- Do you anticipate that 
that will be bel ow 1 9 9 , 000? If so, in what range? 

MR. BERNARD : I would be surprised if the tota l 
municipal obligation i s above 95,000. 

MS. SMARTH: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Would you say your experience--

Hindsight is always t he most beautiful vision. We all know 
that. Would you say your experience for the projections made 
for '87 to '93 have tempered your projections for the next 
seven years, or whatever i t is? 

MR. BERNARD: Well, I think it has tempered the entire 
State's projections. I mean, again, we did not make up those 
projections. Those were the projections that every State 
agency was using at the time. The projections we are using now 
are much lower. They are also the same projections that 
virtually every Sta t e . agency is using. 

ASSEMBLYMAN 'KELLY: Would I be 
they are more pract•'.i.cal than they were 
hindsight is the best vision. I know that. 
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going to be paying more for housing. You know, over the past 
20, 30 years, the populations have come in in droves from New 
York and from North Jersey to South and Central Jersey . The 
growth is slowing down now. 

Where do you see all this going? I don't think the 
population is going to grow in New Jersey at all. 

MAYOR MATACERA: Assemblyman, I think through s ome of 
our methodol ogy -- and I think Bob and Art can answer that more 
technically than I-- That was one of my concerns, to see where 
the population was being shifted. That is one of the r ea sons 
why we have taken that into consideration, and we have also 
looked at a State average, rather than doing other regional 
type approaches to be able to see how we can evaluate it. Bob 
can probab l y answer from a more technical standpoint. 

DR. BURCHELL: Mr. Mayor, I share your concern . 
Indeed, I think that everybody who has been involved in 
population projections is concerned with over projection at a 
time when we ar e in a 

recession very 
projections are 

slowly. 
recession and are coming out of that 
As a result of that, the population 

conservative. They are some of 
conservativ e po pulation projections we have ever used. 
that is ta ken ca re of fully in the methodology, as 

the most 
Indeed, 

well as 
redirection with regard to the State Plan back into the more 
urban, as opposed to the suburban areas. 

So, all o f those kinds of considerations with regard 
to not using overgenerous, or what we ca 11 Chamber of Commer.ce 
population projections, but very realistic population 
projections, taking into account where that population is going 
and where we would like to see it go-- That has all been taken 
into account i n the methodology. That is used in the CHAS; it 
is used in the Department of Transportation projections for 
road funding ; 1 and also in the State Plan. So, a lot of 
coordination has gone into making these projections. 

MR. AZZOLINA: If I may continue? 
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projection. So, they are using their models, and you are 

projecting it for the share of that model that is below 80 

percent of income. So it is the same model that was used for 
the CHAS; the same model that was used for the State Plan; the 
same model that the State Department of Transportation is using 
for its urban supplement. It is a very conservative model. I 
think it represents very adequately what the growth will be in 
the future, reflecting the recess ion we just had, which we a re 
not out of yet. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you have the projected figure, 
or will we get that later? 

DR. BURCHELL: We will get that later. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You had your hand raised, Mr. 

Azzolina? 
MR. AZZOLINA: ( speaking from audience) May I ask a 

question? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Sure. Sit up here. You were an 

Assemblyman; get up here. 
MR. AZZOLINA: What I am concerned about is, we have 

seen in New Jersey that the population is not growing, or is 
declining. The whole Northeast is on the decline now 
population-wise, jobs-wise. Jobs are moving out of the State. 
Industry is closing down. What you are finding is a shift, 
probably more shifts from the cities to the suburbs. Newark, I 
see, came below 300,000. The State Plan, I 

recommended trying to get people back to the cities. 
believe, 

If you 
don't refurbish the cities, you are not going to get them back 
there. 

So all we are doing is shifting our population around, 
and the suburbs are going to take the burden of all this. I 
don't think that is fair. I don't think it is fair -- like I 
said 
have 

before, 
such a 

and you may have 
tough job buying 

heard me that young people 
homes. When you start adding 

additional. costs to take care of subsidized housing, they are 

37 



a vacant land adjustment, and there will be a much more 
streamlined way for them to get certificat i on in the future . 

MR. AZZOLINA: Middletown, yea rs ago-- I 1 i ved in t.he 
whole area all my life, just about, so I have seen it go from 
16,000 to 30,000 in about 30 years or less, and now it is about 
70-some thousand. I have seen apartments come in. I have seen 
small development. First there used to be summer communities. 
Then they had the summer homes on 10,000 square feet, and at 
Woods Horizon they live there year-round. Then they put 
apartments in. Then K. Hovnanian buil t excellent housing, 
provided 1000 uni ts. Shadow Lake-- You know, we a 11 thought 
it was great the Township Committee and they provided 
adult communities at very low cost. People could afford the 
higher level. Then they built a lower level, Shady Oaks , 600 
or 700 acres -- units -- and they provided that type of housing . 

Then Middletown provided 600 senior citizen housing 
units. Never any credit, so they did what other towns didn't 
do. Without naming names, there are other communities nearby 
-- not only in our county, but in other counties -- that have 
three- and five-acre zoning, huge homes, and lots of empty 
land, and yet we got socked with this 1850 before, because we 
built the sewers to take care of our towns and the roads and so 
forth. But other towns never got hit like we did. That wasn't 
fair. That is why I am glad to hear now that Middletown may be 
spared. It is not only Middletown. I am using that as an 
example. There are other towns. These were the growth towns . 
These were the towns that provided the housing for people of 
moderate and low income at the time, the young people coming 
up. We had droves of young people. 

MAYOR MATACERA: Assemblyman, that is exactly the 
perspective I took from a municipal point of view; to say , 
"Hey, we have had some of the zoning that has been put into 
place, and there are other communities that have not put any 
zoning in place." I can agree with you that the Hovnanian 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You may go right ahead. 
MR. AZZOLINA: Take my own town, where I live, Mayor 

, 
Peters' place 40 square miles. They have taken aerial 
views. There are certain sections set aside for parks. Now, 

the town has a composite of 10,000 square foot lots, all the 
way up to maybe -- what is it? three acres, five acres, 
whatever it is in the River Road area. So in that general area 
you are going to see big, blank spots. Then you are going to 
see other areas really condensed. Just because you see that 
empty land there, that doesn't mean we are going to fill it in 
either, because our town happens to be a composite of the whole 
county, from the lowest level to the highest level of income, 
and everything in between. So you can't take an aerial view of 
a town like that and say, "Let's fill it in." 

MR. BERNARD: It is not the intent to take an aerial 
and say, "Fill it in." The intent is, if we have this need 
that is measured out here as a matter of projections, let's get 
it to places that are more likely to be able to get it built 
based on infrastructure and capacity. 

Now, in the case of Middletown, Middletown has gone 
through a very difficult process, as I know very well having 
been involved with it as a mediator several times. But 
Middletown is going to get what is called a "vacant land 
adjustment" this time, which means that we have determined that 
when we take into consideration the parkland, the wetlands, the 
other environmentally sensitive areas, we have said, 
"Middletown has handled about all the inclusionary development 
it can handle." 

Now, Middletown has chosen to not go the inclusionary 
development way and do some RCAs, which are fine. But we have 
said that they have done what they were supposed to do, and as 
a re·sult they are not going to get a number per se anymore. 
Communities like Middletown will have on record that they have 
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new homes, condos, but we need to do-- The infrastructure is 
in the cities. People do 1 ike to 1 i ve in the cities. There 
are a lot of them who like to live there, but they are afraid 
to live there. That is the problem. 

That's it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

Thank you. 
KELLY: Okay. 

some questions, Mr. Gaffney? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Yes. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You have the floor. 

Did you have 

ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: I haven't seen a soap opera in a 
long time, and the Middletown story has touched me deeply. It 
really has. Just so we all know where we .are coming from 
not from Middletown -- I have some pointed questions that I 
have been making notes on. 

But, before I ask them, I just want to let you know 
that for the past 18 years I have been a Councilman and a Mayor 
and a Freeholder. 
I am also Past 

I represent Atlantic County, obviously, but 
President of the South Jersey Freeholders 

Association, all eight southern counties. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Are you looking for a position on 

COAH? Is that what you're doing? (laughter) 
ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: As such, the South Jersey 

Freeholders Association has consistently opposed the State Plan 
because of our large amount of undeveloped agricultural land. 
So I have some problems with the State Plan, as you can 
imagine. But I want you to know that I appreciate it. I know 
all the time and effort you have put into it. But it is my 
impression that the State Plan has always intended to be -- was 
never intended to be mandatory. That is my impression, 
certainly from South Jersey. But evidently your agency is 
placing a real hard emphasis on determining where housing is 
built on the basis of the State Plan. 

So I guess my first question is: Can you tell the 
Cammi ttee what steps you plan on taking in your dealings with 
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people have bui 1 t a great product. They bui 1 t two projects in 
our community that we are very, very pleased with, and we 
solved that need. I agree whol e heartedly with you--

MR. AZZOLINA: Yes, g· eat, they build a great home. 
They took care of the need f or a lot of young people. 
there were more units like tha t. 

I wish 

MAYOR MATACERA: Ab s olutely. 
here is be able to understand . 

So what we have to do 

Getting back to y ou_ o riginal question, some of that 
thought process over the las ~ co upl~ of months has been applied 
very hard into the methodo l o gy to understand where we're 
going. That is one of the reasons why we looked at the State 
average and understood whe r e the shifts in population were 
occurring; not to penalize ~ 1burbia, but then again, not to put 
everything back into the cities where the population was 
diminishing. 

Bob Burchell has worked on a number of reasons. 
Again, they are a lot more technical than I' but I am 
satisfied, · as a Mayor, to say that I believe we are going in 
the right direction when it comes to the reasonableness of 
numbers. Okay? We've got some work to do. There was some 
thought process, Mr. Chairman, that we may have been out a lot 
sooner. Over the last six or eight weeks, we have taken some 
hard looks into different areas. To be quite honest with you, 
maybe we are a little bit late with our numbers, but I would 
certainly rather be late with a program like this and be damned 
right when we do come out, rather than come out and have 
something wrong over the next six years. 

MR. 
other places, 
were so·1 id. 

AZZOLINA: People 
just rebuilt some 

I know in Philadelphia, and 
old buildings. The buildings 

I don't know whether there are a lot of vacant 
buildings in cities; I assume there are. Also, they took an 
area, I guess, that was condemned, tore it down, and built some 
nice houses. I assume it is still nice housing, but those are 
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ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: You a re going to have to make 
adjustments in what sense, by taking them to court? 

MR. BERNARD: We don't take communities to court. All 
we do is review plans. We are just looking for realistic 
plans. So, if communit _e s -- Communities have all kinds of 
options. Under the process, they can transfer some of the 
obligation under an RCA -- a Regional Contribution Agreement. 
They can rehabilitate t t e ir housing stock. If they are looking 
for a site in town to c r oduce housing, we are just looking for 
a realistic site; a si t e that -has infrastructure. 

the 
they 

MR. OPALSKI: (speaking off-mike) We wouldn ' t 
towns that go forward with those designated centers 

feel 

fight 
that 

deliberated 
comfortable with; that their planning 

over, an ·l they feel are the most 
boards have 
appropriate 

locations for new grow h to occur. 
MAYOR MATACERA: I think we want to maintain some of 

the things 
flexibility--

I spoke about earlier, Assemblyman, as the 
My criteria and one of the things that I looked 

at with . substantive concern, was to maintain a municipality's 
flexibility. That is what I think we are trying to build into 
the rules; that flexibility to come back and say, "Hey, we 
don't have the ability to do it," or, "We do have the ability 
to do it," and be able to come through our process and be able 
to adjudicate it there, rather than go to the courts, where we 
were back in the early '80s, when we had no ability to get out 
of it. I think this is the thing we are looking at at this 
point in time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: For my edification, what do you 
mean by infrastructure, just so we all vote for the same thing? 

MAYOR MATACERA: From ·my classification, I look at 
infrastructure as things like: sewer, water. I also consider 
looking at school facilities--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Well, I was going to ask that 
question. 
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municipalities to reach that goal, that goal being the State 
Plan? What steps do you intend to take in your dealings with 
t h e municipalities to reach the goals of the State Plan? 

MR. BERNARD: Well, we have a mandate under Mount 
L:,u rel and in our statute to direct housing need based on the 
g o als of the State Plan, but having done that--

MR. HOVNANIAN: Just on that point--
MR. BERNARD: Go ahead. I'm sorry. 
MR. HOVNANIAN: That does make us different than other 

agencies, specifically in the Fair Housing Act, which was the 
enabling legislation creating COAH. It is quite specific that 
our p 1 an and distribution sha 11 be made, in large part, based 
on the State Plan. Many other agencies do not have that, but 
in our particular case that was part of the enabling 
legislation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So, if a municipality then, acting 
on its own zoning or home rule, proposed a forward housing plan 
which may fall outside your parameters, you know, what would be 
your response? 

MR . BERNARD: Well, I think, you know, what the State 
Plan has done in terms of housing aid-- There is actually a 
certain amount of sense there, because if we are talking about 
where housing is going to be created, or could be, we are going 
to be looking at sites with infrastructure. If you cut through 
all the planning area jargon and what they are trying to 
accomplish, they are basically trying to concentrate 
development in areas where there is infrastructure or where 
infrastructure can be extended. 

That goal 
affordable housing. 

is 
So I 

come in with their plans, 

quite 
think, 
we are 

consistent with providing 
you know, when municipalities 
going tD be looking for sites 

that either have infrastructure or to which infrastructure can 
be extended. If there are no such sites available, then we are 
going to have to make adjustments. 
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MAYOR MATACERA: The problem with the schools, in a 
sense, Assemblyman, is that we would also have to look at the 
land use ordinances in the State statutes on land use. We 
cannot preclude a development right now in the land use 
statutes because of the need for schools; okay, education . If 
you look at your land use statutes now okay? -- and we look 
at 1 and use planning-- I would 1 i ke to be able to say to 
someone, "I am going to exclude your zoning," or, "I am going 
to exclude your housing development because you are going to 
-add an impact to my schoo 1 s." We cannot do that legally at a 
municipal level. So I don't believe COAH-- That is for any 
housing, let alone Mount Laurel. I don't believe COAH can make 
that, but we can look at it as something that is part of--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you think legislation should be 
introduced to have that part of the consideration? 

MAYOR MATACERA: I would say let's look at it. I 
would probably say no, but I think that is a consensus if we 
can find the right language and the right leg i slation. Any 
legislation can be looked at. 

MR. HOVNANIAN: I think pa rt of the problem is, you 
will find in many instances, with many types of development, 
that development generates school children. There is just no 
two ways about it, other than office buildings, and maybe that 
is part of the root of the problem; or, senior housing, which 
anybody is more free to build and zone for. Everybody is 
hesitant to zone for family housing because there is a cost 
associated with it, where there isn't with seniors and office 
buildings. 

Part of the problem is, many municipalities were quick 
to · zone for the office buildings because of their good 
ratables, creating job demand, and· not doing their fair share 
of the housing, which created some of the imbalance. 

But, to the earlier point , any kind of housing is 
going to generate a demand for school children, other than age 
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MAYOR MATACERA: I'm talking as a Mayor, Mayor. To 
me, that is infrastructure. To me, school facilities and 
schools are infrastructure. To me, road networks are 
infrastructure; all site improvements are infrastructure. 
These are things, I think, that we have to begin taking into 
consideration. Can we build a unit? If we can't build a unit, 
then we have to see how we can build a unit. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: But those are the things that COAH 
includes in their infrastructure? 

MAYOR MATACERA: To me, that is my interpretation. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You said, "yours." 
MAYOR MATACERA: We are still discussing all of those 

things. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh, you mean it is not included, 

then? All those-- I don't want to just hear about plumbing, 
electrical, and gas lines. Schooling, to me, is very 
important. Safety is very important Those things all have to 
be taken into this plan, or am I just dreaming? 

MAYOR MATACERA: I personally believe that, as Mayor. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. 
MAYOR MATACERA: Now, I will let the fellows answer as 

to what we have as far as where we"re going. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. You"ve got the floor. 
MR. BERNARD: Well, when we are looking at sites, we 

just look at some very basic planning principles that I think 
anyo ne looks at. We are looking at: Does it have water? Does 
it have sewers? Is is surrounded by compatible land uses? 
Does it have access to an existing street? I mean, the goal 
really isn"t just to jam as much housing in an area as we can. 
We are trying to do something with some planning sense, and 
still meet the housing need. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you include schooling in that? 
Do they have good schools, bad schools, lousy schools? 

New Jersey State Library 
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And I am not talking about Newark; I am talking about any 
school system that is judged insufficient, or below average. 

To me, that is important. If I want to tell a young 
person to buy or live in an area, I know the first thing they 
are going to ask is, "How is the school system?" They're not 
asking about the taxes. They're talking about, "Is the school 
system good?" 

MAYOR MATACERA: At this point--
MR. HOVNANIAN: I want to make just one point before 

you start. We have not had a real problem when affordable 
housing uni ts have been bui 1 t in towns-- We have not really 
had a problem selling them. We are certainly not selling them 
because -- when I say "we," it is not just Hovnanian, but the 
overall industry -- they were built in a poor school system. 
These are people who are desperate for housing of any type; 
people who have been so far out of the marketplace that it has 
been an unreal possibility for them. If any opportunity is 
created, it has been quick to be taken advantage of. 

MAYOR MATACERA: I think, Assemblyman Kelly, the thing 
we have to look at-- I think with the makeup of COAH, we can 
look at a certain application. If a town were to make 
representation to us because they are saying they don't have 
the infrastructure, the water, the sewer, yes, we have this 
piece of vacant land-- If we look at it, and they come in to 
us on a case-by-case basis that is established under our 
existing rules, with the flexibility we might be able to 
generate in some of the newer rules-- When they come in they 
can make that case to say, "This infrastructure needed, 
including that possible school--" I don't know how you could 
legislate it. It would be very difficult . But I think we can 
certainly do it through rules that can be promulgated to be 
able to look at and maintain that flexibility. That is what I 
talk highly of. That is why I say, when they come in with 
something, whatever community it might be--
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; 

restricted senior housing. That goes for low- and 
moderate-income housing and market rate housing. To say that 
developments shall be required to not have that -- or that no 
development shall occur that generates school children, is 
obviously, I think, an a 11 new burden. To say that a schoo 1 
must have vacant excess capacity is a difficult one, because 
there are-- Certainly in any municipalities, on an ongoing 
basis, they have to develop schools as they grow. Much of the 
Mount Laurel activity is certainly where the market is greedy 
growth fo r these municipalities. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Well, that is not my point. I am 
not talking about generating schools. I am talking about, is 
the school system a good school system? How can you tell 
people to go into an area where the schoo 1 system is awfu 1? 
That is my point. Are they going to consider that? 

MR. HOVNANIAN: Right now, the level of the education, 
whether it is a good school or a bad one-- For example, we 
don't preclude Mount Laurel housing in Newark because it has a 
difficult, or not as good a school system as a more prestigious 
town, and then tell a more prestigious town we want more 
housing there. It is really not this-- I don't think in any 
affordable housing program across the entire country and 
there are many of them-- I don't think the level of the 
school, or the quality of the school is a factor in allocating 
housing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: And you don't think it should be? 
MR. HOVNANIAN: I think it is a very difficult one. 

Again, using the Newark example, I think it would be difficult 
to say: "Newark, you have a terrible school system. 
Therefore, you are not going to get any Mount Laurel housing." 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I'm not picking on Newark now, but 
maybe 
Maybe 

that will wake some of these towns-- Exclude Newark. 
if such a statement was made, maybe it would make the 

towns wake up that they better improve their school systems. 
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How would this plan-- Before I finish my question, 
there is some question about the validity of the census there . 
I know there are many people in Long Branch who would question 
the census numbers that were taken in 1990, whether they are 
truly accurate. Some people say it cuts them short by about 20 
percent. I don't know that that is not uncommon, or perhaps an 
uncommon criticism throughout the State in the urban areas. 

Listening to that factor that you have utilized in 
your different scales, I think most of them are planning 
error. I have been the Vice Chairman of the County Planning 
Board for the last six years in Monmouth, and I know a little 
bit about the State Plan. Listening to your factors there, you 
say that using a factor of one now in towns such as mine--
What would you expect of the 22 towns to comply with the COAH 
rules under your scenario? 

MR. BERNARD: Well, I think what I am hearing from you 
is that in most of these communities there is very little land. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: None. 
MR. BERNARD: So, no matter what number we came up 

with for your communities, you would probably say, "Wel 1, 
that's fine, but where is it going to go?" Even though we have 
the satellite that gives us a better fit between need and land, 
if there is some need there, it is probably more than they 
could handle in terms of the amount of available land, from 
what you' re saying. I think the Legislature anticipated that 
in '86 when it passed the Fair Housing Act, because it said, 
"The Council shall do adjustments for vacant land." That is 
part of the Act. We have an adjustment process that will allow 
those communities to show us what they can do and what they 
can't do. I would like to think it is more flexible than the 
one we had before. We have some tools available that were not 
available six years ago; for example, development fees. 

So, for example, these communities might be able to 
get certification by agreeing to capture something for low- and 
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In Assemblyman Gaffney's situation, where the plan may 
exclude-- They can come · in and demonstrate that there is a 
lack of that type of "infrastructure." Okay? Then I think it 
becomes a reasonable program to say-- It is not for COAH to 
say that it is not, or the Legislature to say it is not 
something in a statute. 

MR. HOVNANIAN: Do you know where we are kind of 
driving from, Assemblyman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GAFFNEY: Yes, I do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you have a question, Mr. 

Corodemus? 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Yes. I found your 

explanations in a very difficult area very lucid. Like 
Assemblyman Azzolina, perhaps you can tell me, from a 
conceptual standpoint and apply it directly to my legislative 
district as best you can, how these rules might affect my 
district. My district is a coastal district in Monmouth. 
County. It starts from Sandy Hook 
includes Asbury Park, Long Branch, 
the 22 towns--

and goes down to 
the Neptune area. 

MAYOR MATACERA: Spring Lake. 

Brielle; 
Most of 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: It stops just north of there. 
MAYOR MATACERA: Okay, so Belmar. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: That is excluded. 
MR. HOVNANIAN: Up to Sea Bright, right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Most of the towns are 95 

percent to 100 percent built out. The amount of vacant lots in 
any one town you can count on one hand. Let's take Asbury 
Park. Asbury Park, if you talk about infrastructure, had been 
dumping raw sewage into the ocean unti 1 a few years ago, and 
under DEP order they went to a secondary system. I think they 
are at capacity, even with their new plant. Take Long Branch. 
They are at capacity. Their school systems are deteriorated. 
There is no vital retail shopping areas in those towns. 
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there. 
and 

How intrusive are your surveys to see that Long Branch 
Asbury actually have the capacity in their 

infrastructures? Put aside the school districts for now. 
Let's just take 
transportation. I 
availability. What 
intrusive do you get 

water, 
don't know 

do you 
there? 

sewer, 
what 

do in 

electricity, surface 
you would do about job 
those situations? How 

MR. HOVNANIAN: Let me try to address that, if I may. 
I mentioned earlier that the process is by no 
one. You could always get improvement. 

means a perfect 
It would take 

significantly greater dollars than what we have. As an 
example, it would be ideal, from our perspective, to know every 
acre of every one of the 567 municipalities, account for them, 
know whether there are environmental constraints, know whether 
there is a Green Acres Fund, know if they can be billed, if 
they are available for sale. That is impossible. The 
financial burden is really impossible to comprehend. 

Nevertheless, we have some tools to give us a better 
picture than we had before. The satellite is an example of 
that. But, based on the satellite pictures -- and there are a 
lot of other factors 
number is subject to 
information that will 

we issue a preliminary number. That 
the municipality giving us more updated 
provide a clearer picture of that one 

town, because we simply, as a State agency, cannot know every 
single one of the 567 municipalities sufficiently enough to 
render the exact number. 

In fact, under the current program, we have, on that 
very basis, done a significant number o-f adjustments; in fact, 
in many cases bringing a town to a zero obligation -- a zero 
obligation -- because we. found that, yes, we had a number based 
on the methodology with the best information we knew, but we 
didn't know that a particular town just didn't have a 
financially feasible way, a source of information to tell us 
that their community, like some of your communities and I 
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moderate-income housing as development and redevelopment takes 
place. So, for example, as development and redevelopment takes 
p 1 ace, they might impose a development fee. That is the kind 
of thing where the Council could say, "Well, realistically, 
that is what we can expect out of those communities," and go 
from there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: When you say "development and 
redevelopment," are you taking Asbury and Long Branch saying 
those towns assessing a development and redevelopment fee on 
developers within those cities' bo undaries? 

MR. BERNARD: That is a p ossibility, yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: They are not building there. 
MR. BERNARD: Okay. That may not be a good one for 

those communities. 
DR. BURCHELL: Most of the needs for Asbury and Long 

Branch and what have you are rehab needs. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Exactly. 
DR . BURCHELL: That is factored into the formula, s o 

they get none at all, in many of these cases, perspective need 
or future need, which is new housing only to the degree that 
they want to buy that on a regional contribution agreement from 
someone else. But most of the need that is specified for urban 
areas like that is rehab housing without any additional demand 
on sewers, water, etc. So that is a 1 ready factored into the 
formula. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: I don't mean to . be combative, 
because you are just implementing the State statutes. I have 
some real reservations about the actual policy in the enabling 
statutes. Take a district like Joe's, and the other more 
surburban/rural areas that border my legislative district--
Your plan and the State Plan attempt to cram that development 
into a district such as mine. 

your 
Now, 

scenario 
I think that is even an 
where you are rehabbing 
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Housing Program within the Department of Community Affairs, 
primarily to urban centers for affordable housing. So, the 
Regional Contribution Agreement is one of the major parts of 
the Act, and is really benefiting communities like Asbury Park 
and Long Branch, to that extent anyway. 

MR. OPALSKI: (speaking off mike) One of the points 
that Ara, I think, 
quoted, but they 

was putting forward was, the numbers are not 
are points o f departure. Towns know bes t 

their borders. We have our adjustment and/ or what's within 
remediation process to inve rt the calculated need into a fai r 
share. A fair share can only be derived after we know all the 
factors that you were suggesting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: Sure. 
MR. OPALSKI: How much vac ant land; how muc l 

supportable how much can be done? In fact, the censu ~ 
data-- It may well be that there are errors in that, and tha t 
a town could come forward i3nd from an exterior survey say, 
"Look, I don't believe those uni ts are here. Here is what ou r 
building inspector believes are here, and here are standards 
that we would put forward that are accepted by the industry to 
help identify by exterior survey how many units there are." 

So even there, when the census is the hardest and best 
data and the latest data, what we would do would be open to a 
more flexible approach for a town to come forward and justify a 
number that is realistic, what is actually there. 

MR. HOVNANIAN: Assemblyman, if I could put on my 
other hat just for a moment as a developer in some of those 
areas and in our case we develop in Newark, Jersey City, and 
we are about to begin one 1n Atlantic City I can 
wholeheartedly agree with, I think, the direction you are going 
in; that is, to say these areas do need significant dollars to 
help them, not just with low- and moderate-income housing, but 
in their general market rate rehabilitation efforts, both 
residential and commercial. To that extent, I endorse the 
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happen to live near your area, so I am quite familiar with it 
has no vacant land available. We have gone methodically--

We probably have 20 or 30 towns which have gone through and had 
their numbers adjusted almost to zero because of that factor. 

But we cannot do that in the first go-around with the 
numbers. We assign a number based on a standard methodology 
getting the best picture that we have available. Then we leave 
it up to the towns to supply us with the information to 
fine-tune it. We have done that in the past; we will do that 
even more vigorously in the future. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CORODEMUS: I would like to ask just one 
more follow-up question. By my statements before I didn't mean 
to imply that towns like Asbury and Long Branch wouldn't invite 
rehabilitation of their deteriorated housing stock, 
revitalization of their retail shopping areas, more recreation 
that they need, and perhaps even better school systems, but in 
this mix where you are moving development back into those 
planning areas 1 and 2, such as the towns I have highlighted, 
where are the dollars to augment, perhaps, a deteriorated 
infrastructure system, to make a town receptive to 
redevelopment? Is there something-- I understand a little bit 
about how these credits are given and such, but what moneys go 
to the towns to beef up their water and sewer, their streets, 
their transportation? 

MR. BERNARD: If I may, we don't have any money for 
that. We don't have any money at all, as a matter of fact. 
The one vehicle we have to help communities rehab their housing 
stock, and some of it can go for infrastructure improvements 
that lead to affordable housing, is the Regional Contribution 
Agreement. For example, two of the communities you are talking 
about -- Long Branch and A_sbury Park have agreed to accept 
units from Middletown for a RCA, and they are getting a 
substantial amount of money to help to rehabilitate their 
housing stock. There is also available money from the Balanced 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you have a question, Mr. 
Hartmann? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes, Mr . Chairman. Getting 
back to the State Plan, it seems to place a lot of emphasis now 
on rebuilding the cities, as y ou were just talking about , and 
you mentioned some things COAH had done, perhaps expanding the 
RCA, or maybe just changing -- I don't like to use the word 
"quota," but changing the requirements that other towns have 
and putting more in the cities. Again, in response to this 
St ate Pl an trying to rebuild t he cities, both economically , as 
well as in affordable housing. That is where the real problem 
is. You're not just actually rebuilding -- doing more housing, 
you're just rehabilitating the housing. 

I represent the City of Trenton. 
door-to-door in those areas, quite a few houses 

Just going 
on the bJock 

These seem to have no one 1 i ving in them . 
candidates for rehabi li tat ion. I have never 

houses are idea 1 
been inside them . 

Maybe COAH should be placing more of an emphasis on 
rehabilitation, instead of building in the suburbs. 

MR. OPALSKI: I was born and raised in Trenton, 
Assemblyman, and I know the city's housing stock very well . It 
is as you describe it. That is a funding problem, not a zoning 
problem. What we are charged to do is-- It leans toward the 
zoning end, which is through land use regulations, and the 
statute says it. Through the land development ordinances a 
town addresses its fair share. With a city like Trenton we 
would certainly invite a developer to come in and put in as 
much inclusionary housing as they possibly could~ We would 
certainly encourage that; and encourage the RCAs and try to 
work with the city in trying to induce more of that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Is it 50 percent RCAs? Is that 
the--

MR. OPALSKI: Fifty percent is the limit. The reality 
is that about 8 percent of all of the fair shares before us in 
the courts are covered by the RCAs. 
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thought wholeheartedly, and would urge the Assembly to consider 
some general funding for urban areas to help them on an overall 
basis with all types of development, including, but not limited 
to helping on this. Our urban areas have been severely 
neglected in all respects, and I think that is an area that has 
to be addressed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I would like to come up with the 
money for that, but, unfortunately--

MAYOR MATACERA: I was just going to say that with the 
budgetary problems the State is undergoing, we may not be able 
to see that, so I think we have to collectively work tow a rd 
those things, and we will be happy to. 

MR. CIFELLI: Pardon my ignorance in this quest ion, 
but does COAH get information from the municipalities before 
allocating their fair shares? In other words, do they go to an 
Asbury Park and say, "What have you done over the last six 
years, and what do you think your fair share should be?" before 
they go out and say, "Asbury Park--" And if not, why not? 

MR. OPALSKI: The Act requires us to come up with 
estimates of State and regional need and criteria by which 
municipalities may calculate their need on a fair basis. Art 
pointed to the principles that are embedded in the litigation 
in Supreme Court decisions that become foundations for that. 

When we enter into it, we enter into it when a town 
submits a plan and begins to justify the numbers they believe 
repre·sent what can be done -- the doable numbers. From that 
point, if you can supplant if my town or your town can 
supplant the information tbit COAH has, that it is mandated to 
deliver by statute and by Supreme Court decision, then that is 
considered in the adjustment and remediation process. 

So, the leadership would come from the Counci 1, but 
those in no way, shape, or form are quotas. They are points of 
departure. They represent calculated need, and need to be 
turned into a fair share with the help of the towns. 
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well, because not every town- - It is wrong ~o assume that they 
automatically don't want it done in thei r town. If they must 
do it, many towns want some component of it at least built in 
the town. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN : You mentioned earlier the 
weighting process in the five different regions. 

MR. BERNARD: The State Planning Commission planning 
areas? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Yes, weighting how much 
affordable housing has to be placed in each area . Cou l d you go 
over that for me one more time? Te 11 me the five different 
regions and how they are weighted. 

MR. BERNARD: All right. What we did was-- We have 
this regional need that has t o be assigned to communities, and 
we are trying to get that need_ to communities in areas where it 
can get built; in areas that have avai l able land, and to areas 
that have infrastructure first, because that is where the State 
Planning Cammi ss ion wants it . So , we have five planning areas 
in the State Plan. P l anning area 1 is an urban center; 
p 1 anning area 2 is like a suburban area with infrastructure; 
planning area 3 is like a suburban area that doesn't have 
infrastructure yet, but it is c l ose; planning area 4 is an area 
where I think it is fair to say that one of the overriding 
goals is to preserve State farmland; and planning area 5 is an 
area where the State Planning Commission has said, I guess, 
that the overriding goal is to preserve environmentally 
sensitive areas. 

So, planni~if- areas 1 and 2 have infrastructure; 
p 1 anning area 3 doesn't, but could soon; and p 1 anning areas 4 
and 5, the goals of the State Planning Commission are more to 
preserve what's there, rather than induce more development. So 
we try to take this undeveloped land and weigh it to be 
consistent with the State Plan . That is why we scouted all the 
undeveloped land in planning areas 4 and 5, to make sure that 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Okay. 
MR. HOVNANIAN: But a lot of the need is based on the 

indigenous current housing which is dilapidated, which needs to 
be rehabilitated. Over a third is of that caliber. 

MR. OPALSKI: Only 8 percent of the fair shares 
certified by the Council and the courts together are covering 
RCAs. There are about 3200 units. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: But in the absence of the 50 
percent--

MR. OPALSKI: Yes? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: 

place more emphasis on the RCAs, 
Is there any way we can try to 
in light of the--

MR. HOVNANIAN: That is up to the individual 
municipality, really, to do what it deems the best. In 
Middletown's case, it is going almost exclusively to RCAs. In 
other municipalities, if they have to have an obligation, they 
would rather have it in their towns. It is really up to each 
i ndi v idual town. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: I was thinking and I might 
be way off in this -- that the towns would want to use RCAs to 
the fullest extent possible. 

MR. BERNARD: Well, some do, and some don't. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Why wouldn't they? 
MR. BERNARD: Well, some towns believe, when it gets 

down to it, you know-- They realize there is a need for low-
and moderate-income housing within their borders. Even if they 
don't. RCAs cost money. Some of them would rather the 
development in town, than spend ·the money to transfer it 
elsewhere. 

MR. HOVNANIAN: Keep in mind that the municipalities 
are allowed to earmark 50 percent of the affordable units for 
people who work or live in the town, and a lot of the people 
who work in the town need housing in the town: the policemen, 
the teachers, the firemen, etc . That is the attractive part as 
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and my town West Windsor and Plainsboro. That also reflects 
the ability to support low- and moderate-income housing because 
of that ratable base relative to other areas. So that factor 
comes into play in this process as well. 

One of the things the Council is sensitive to is 
trying to get a relationship so that the numbers become fair, 
and also realize that those numbers can result from zoning 
changes that would occur in these areas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Who determines what's fair? 
MR. OPALSKI: Well, the factors we are using are those 

factors and principles that the courts have enunciated over the 
decades. They are reflected in two statutes. It is not just 
the Fair Housing Act, but also they are acknowledged in · the 
State Planning Act. The bus i ness o f the relationship was 
employment; one that both levels of government -- the judiciary 
and the Legislature agreed to 9s significant in this 
process, in the allocation process. It is one of three factors 
used to help determine that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Our next President always likes 
to use the words, "people paying their fair share," and I am 
wondering how we can play fair. 

MS. SMARTH: I have a question for you -- for Art. I 
read over your testimony when you sent it over. It seemed 
pretty detailed in terms of outlining the factors that you were 
going to be considering in coming up with these new numbers for 
the various fair share municipal obligations. But, I am 
wondering if you can shed some light with regard to how you 
intend to use the factors an-d equate-- I mean, how are you 
going to weight them in order to come out with the specific 
riumbers? Can you just give us any kind of general overtone to 
that? 

MR. OPALSKI : Sure . These three factors that Art 
described--
clear about 

Let me just review them for you again 
them: The equalized assessed 
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they got low numbers. Okay? Then, p 1 anning areas 1 and 2 
where they have the infrastructure, almost the same as the old 
State Planning Commission growth areas, we took that 
undeveloped land and weighed it as one, and then the areas in 
planning area 3 that do not have the infrastructure yet, but 
looks like it is heading there, either the private sector can 
bring it there or municipalities can extend it from planning 
area 2, we weighed it as a half. That was just a way, again, 
to get a better link between the need assigned to a community 
and the municipal ability to respond as measured both in 
available land and infrastructure, which the State Planning 
Commission agreed was consiste,nt with their goals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARTMANN: Just one more question. It is 
more asking your opinion. Mount Laurel came out in the 
mid-'70s. It 
that a lot of 
the suburbs, 
building up. 

seemed, among other things, to recognize the fact 
the growth was coming from the cities and into 

just recognizing the fact that businesses were 
West Windsor, my hometown, is a perfect example. 

But then the Plan seems to want to try to go against the whole 
Mount Laurel and then what followed from it about building 
affordable housing in the suburban areas and tries to push it 
back into the urban areas. 

Do you see a potential conflict doing that -- that is 
my first question -- increasing housing in the urban areas? It 
seems we are trying to push it back despite the free market, 
people living where they want to live trying to build up the 
market in the cities. 
two. 

MR. OPALSKI: 

There seems to be a conflict between the 

That would be one way to view it, 
Assemblyman, but vacant land weighted for classification from 
the State Plan is one of three factors that relate to the 
allocation. One of 
assessed valuations 

the 
on 

other ones happens to be equalized 
nonresident i a 1 developments, which 

reflects the jobs that a re cur rent ly in places like your town 
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I don't mean 
been very interesting; 
going to have a better 

to-- Believe me, your information has 
extremely interesting. I can see we are 
COAH in the future, it seems . You have 

some real things to deal with. 
Let's see. Jeff Surenian, are you in the audience? 

(affirmative response) Do you want to make some comments, or 
do you want to wait? What's go i ng on here? 

MR. SURENIAN: Let me ask you--
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Ask me? I am the inquisitor. 
MR. SURENIAN: Is the Assembly going to be reconvening 

after the Council on Affordable Housing proposes regulations? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh, sure. We can reconvene any 

time. 
MR. SUREN IAN: What my thought would be is, rather 

than me speaking to this Subcommittee, I have spoken to the 
Council op Affordable Housing staff, and I will be appearing in 
front of the Council on Affordable Housing making 
recommendations to them as to how they can improve those 
standards. Rather than putting them in an awkward position, I 
would rather reserve comment until after they have something. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: That's fine. Okay. 
Peter Buchsbaum. Did I pronounce that correct l y? 

PETER A. BUCHSBAUM, ESQ.: Buchsbaum. That's 
close enough. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Do you want to make some comments? 
MR. BUCHSBAUM: Yes, just briefly, because I know you 

have had a lot of speakers, and you will have more. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Go ahead. 
MR. BUCHSBAUM: The Committee has ·covered a lot of 

material, and I can see it takes awhile to digest all of it. 
Severa 1 of us in the audience · here have been invo 1 ved with 
affordable housing through the Mount Laurel decision and 
through the COAH statute. I have also spoken to your 
colleague, Assemblyman Corodemus on several occasions about the 

62 



nonresidential ratables is one of three factors; the vacant 
land weighted for vacancy by municipality and by State Planning 
classification is another; and the third is the relative wealth 
of a community as measured by the difference between the median 
of income versus the lowest category in that particular housing 
re g ion. These a re treated equally. So the municipa 1 share of 
it s region's base of that would represent-- For example, Art 
used the example of 100 jobs when we were using covered 
employment versus 1000 100 over 1000, yes, so it became 1 

percent of the amount for that factor. Then the averages were 
taken for the other two factors, and then those three averages 
were averaged yet again. 
others. 

So each was treated equally with the 

MS. SMARTH: Okay. Maybe I am a little bit-- Maybe I 
should have studied this more, but essentially the weight you 
are giving to these three categories that you just mentioned--
Is it different? Is this basically . different from what you 
were doing in the first six-year cycle, or is it the same thing? 

MR. OPALSKI: The Co unc il treated all the factors 
equally the last time around as well. 

MS. SMARTH: Okay. It i s just that these new figures 
based on the census are going to change--

MR. OPALSKI: They are more accurate, yes. 
right. More current, accurate, and, 
representative. 

MS. SMARTH: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Are you finished? 
MS. SMARTH: Yes, I think so. 

we would 
That's 

hope, 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: May I suspend your testimony? I 
just want to get some input from the members of the public out 
there. · Then we will get back to you. If it is too late, then 
we will suspend it, and we will come back for another meeting. 
But I do want to get to some individuals who have been sitting 
out there very patiently. 
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MR. BUCHSBAUM: Well, we have been doing that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Oh , good. 
MR. BUCHSBAUM: I know you are asking questions here 

and getting answers. I am just saying, if there are some 
things we can do in addition to COAH-- Believe me, I wi 11 be 
at the COAH hearings--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay, thank you. 
MR. BUCHSBAUM: --but if in addition there is 

something we can do, we would be glad to. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I'm not bashful. 

questions if I think we need you. 
I' 11 ask you 

MR. BUCHSBAUM: Thanks. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Elizabeth C. McKenzie. Go ahead, 

you have the floor. 
E L I Z A B E T H c. MCKEN z IE: Mr. Chairman and 
members of the Committee: I heard you say that you are going 
to end this meeting quickly, so I'll talk fast. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY : No, no, you say what you have to 
say. 

MS. McKENZIE: I am a Planning Consultant. I have 
done planning work both wit h municipalities, in helping them to 
prepare their housing elements to comply with COAH's 
regulations, and I have also been a court-appointed master in 
several Mount Laurel cases, so I come at this from both sides. 
I have also represented developers who are in Mount Laurel 
suits against municipalities. 

Obviously, none of us have had the advantage of having 
' the full set of revised rules in front of us, but I have been 

following COAH's processes in terms of coming up with this 
revised approach. I think that, in general, recognizing what 
Ara Hovnanian said to you, that nothing is perfect in terms of 
a formula-- I think this formula is as fair a formula as it is 
possible to devise at this point. 
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State Plan. Really, rather than make any specific comments, I 
will just generally say two things: 

One, COAH is aware, I think, of the difficulties you 
have been talking about, and has made, especially partly 
with Paul and Ara's leadership, is making a reasonable effort 
to accommodate the constitution a 1 requirements that exist in 
Mount Laurel, with the realities, Assemblyman, that you have 
been talking about. I am confident over the next year, as the 
numbers develop, that you will find a receptive ear in COAH to 
work with you. That is one thing I wanted to say, just to get 
across that this is a dialogue that has been in existence for 
awhile. This is the first time this Majority has had a chance 
to really gr apple with it because of the new numbers, and I 
think you will find it a productive dialogue. I think you have 
started that today. I commend you for your effort in starting 
it. 

. The second thing and I just want to make this 
off e r-- I am an attorney. I have represented municipal 
go vernments and the private sector. Speaking for myself, and 
pr c bably for some of the others who will come after me, if 
the re is anything we can do as far as working with the 
Committee, the Committee staff, Ms. Smarth, or any of the 
Committee members to advance the process, to answer quest ions 
in an informal way, I know I would be glad to help out in that 
regard, and I guess Steve can talk to that. I'm sure some of 
the others would as well, because we want to make your job as 
easy as possible, and help you, by giving you as much 
information as possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: My advice would be to go to their 
public hearings and tell them what you think they should do. 
It would make more sense, really, than telling us to do 
something after the cat is out of the barn, or whatever the 
hell that expression is. 

63 



credibility. There is the link between nonresidential ratables 
and affordable housing. I think this is important, as opposed 
to using covered employment numbers, which are faulty, and 
which do have to be . reexamined when a municipality is looking 
at its fair share obligation under the current methodology . It 
eliminates the penalty to high population municipalities in 
terms of the per capital income, which I think is important . I 
think, again, that the one-to-one credit for efforts that have 
been made in the past is extremely important. 

I think there is going to be an improvement it 
looks like -- in the accuracy of the methodology based on the 
availability of up-to-date numbers, and also better sources of 
information that are being relied on. So I think, in general, 
I, as a planner, am supportive of what is being presented to 
you. Obviously, we all need to look more specifically at what 
comes out of COAH in terms of the formal rules, but the overal l 
approach, I think, is a good one, given the fact that we all 
have to work with the legislative mandate, and the judicial 
mandate that preceded that, to provide affordable housing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. 
MS. McKENZIE: You're welcome. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Any questions? 

Okay, thank you. 
Philip B. Caton. 

(no response) 

P H I L I P B. C A T O N: Thank you, Assemblyman. I 
appreciate the opportunity to speak to you today. I feel a 
little bit like being asked what I think of a piece of art 
after hearing the artist describe what inspired him when he 
painted it. You really won't know until you actually see the 
picture. But I would like to say that the process that COAH 
has proceeded through has been a very inclusive one. 

I am a practicing consul ting planner. I have served 
on both sides the municipal and the developer sides -- as 
well as being a master for the Court in about 25 different 
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I sat in on some earlier Subcommittee meetings, 
speaking with Art Berna rd and other COAH staffers to try to 
devise approaches for the next round of fair share 
allocations. We talked about things like a · growth share 
approach and a number of other things. Some of those might be 
doable in the future. I think that for the time being the 
approach that has been devised so far and obviously 
everything waits unt i 1 we see how the f ina 1 rules come out--
But the approach so far has the advantage of being consistent 
with the State Plan goals, which I think is important; 
consistent, obviously, with the judicial and legislative 
mandates that COAH has to work with; and consistent with the 
projections that are being used by other agencies in terms of 
coming up with the housing needs. 
same wavelength at the State 
important. 

So we are all working on the 
level, and I think that is 

It also, I think, has the advantage of political 
acceptability, because the numbers generally are going to be 
lower, and because towns are going to be given credit for what 
they have done. I think this is the first time that the towns 
that have tried honestly to comply with previous phases of 
whatever their affordable housing requirements have been, are 
going to be given credit for that. Certainly, towns that 
thought they were complying with Mount Laurel I and towns that 
thought they were complying with the Oakland/Madison decision 
and all of the other earlier requirements of the Court, 
suddenly, when they were faced with Mount Laurel I I and then 
with the Fair Housing Act, were left holding the bag with large 
numbers that they were assigned to, and lots of multiple-family 
housing already within their borders. At least now towns are 
being given honest credit for what they did to comply with the 
first round of fair share numbers. 

Thirdly, I think that 
being talked about has the 
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being the idea of establishing nodes where development can 
occur, even in rural areas. 

There are a lot of complexities to that notion and, in 
fact, many planners think that it won't really be until 
transfer development rights is statutorily enacted that the 
center's concept wi 11 really blossom. So I think it is going 
to be a long time before any uni ts actually occur in those 
areas. 

My final point is, there has been a lot of talk about 
crediting towns on a one-to-one basis for fair share compliance 
1n the prior round. I certainly endorse that notion. In fact, 
we have urged that the Counci 1 go even further in crediting 
towns on more than a one-to-one basis for affordable housing 
uni ts that are actually produced and occupied as of 1993 or 
1994, whenever the compliance term starts; that is, to 
acknowledge the strain on infrastructure that the Mount Laurel 
units and the market units which come with them encompass. 
Towns like Tinton Falls, for instance, have 139 units actually 
built. They have another 1300 market units that came along 
with those affordable units. They have done a survey of school 
children, and have found that, on average, each unit brings 
with it half a school child in the K through eighth grade. So, 
you can compute the cost of these. 

Now, I don"t think that--
municipalities are used to bearing, 
do so. But I do think that as we 

I think that is a cost that 
and it is proper that they 
look for ways of bringing 

municipalities voluntarily into compliance, it is important to 
use as many carrots as possible. When the Fair Housing Act 
went into effect and the Mount Laurel II decision, there was a 
stick, and the stick was the builders' suit. Well, builders 
are not suing anymore because of the status of the housing 
market, so we need more carrots . One carrot might be for those 
towns that complied and actually have accommodated new units at 
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towns. COAH has reached out to all segments of the planning 
and municipal communities, and I think that some of the 
testimony you heard today reflects that. 

I wi 11 be very brief with my comments on the plan as 
it is emerging. One of the pressure points here has to do with 
the indigenous need numbers which Art Bernard described 
earlier. He indicated that the numbers were going to be 
substantially reduced. The short form of this is that the 
indigenous need comprises 80 percent of the State's fair share 
need . So if you substantially reduce that number based on the 
1990 census data, that has a dramatic impact on the statewide 
fair share. That may be fully justified by the 1990 census, 
but I think-- We don't know what the term "substantial" means 
y~t, because we haven't seen the numbers. 
important that COAH go to some lengths 

But I do think it is 
to identify why the 

indigenous need is going to come out at whatever level it is. 
I think they've got the data from the 1990 census, and all of 
the records of rehabilitation that has been accomplished in the 
various towns across the State, and the demolitions, to do that. 

The allocation process, considering the vacant land 
factor that was described today, is eminently fairer than the 
prior process under which the fair share was allocated. There 
is one caveat, though, that I would like to make; that is, with 
regard to planning areas 4 and 5. These are in the rural and 
agricultural and environmentally sensitive parts of the State. 
If you remove the vacant land-- If you remove that factor from 
the equation and multiply it by zero, as they plan to do, there 
will still be an allocation made to those communities because 
of the other two factors: wealth and nonresidential ratables. 
So there wi 11 be an al location of fair share uni ts to those 
towns and, in fact, there wi 11 be some growth in those towns. 
The success of accomplishing any affordable housing in those 
towns, though, is going to be largely dependent on the success 
of the center's concept in the State Plan; the center"s concept 
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to address affordable housing 
the development of programs 
along that line. 

needs. 
and the 

This process 
allocation of 

can drive 
resources 

While we understand that there is a lower prospective 
need for new units that seems t o be corning up since growth 
rates are going to be reduced, one area we have a concern about 
is the need for affordable ho using for the State's current 
residents, or what has been referred to as an "indigenous 
need." In reality, it might be much greater than what is going 
to be projected in this plan, because in large part it is based 
on the number of substandard units; households living in 
substandard housing around the State. One thing it doesn't 
appear to take into account are households that are paying too 
much income -- too much of their income toward housing costs . 
So, for instance, in the State CHAS that was developed 
recently, they estimated that , I believe, 620,000 low- and 
moderate-income households in the State spend more than 30 
percent of their income on ho u sing costs . In additi on, over 
300,000 of those households -- nearly half of them -- actually 
pay in excess of 50 percent of their income on housing costs. 
So it is an important area that needs to be addressed. 

Another major point that I think has to be made that 
came up in a number of people's comments, is that as a result 
of relying on the private, for-profit sector to develop many of 
these affordable housing units around the State, in many cases 
it has led to the production of a great number of uni ts. In 
order to get one affordable housing unit, they have produced 
five units overall. That has placed an enormous burden on many 
municipalities, both on their infrastructure and on their 
ability to absorb that many more households and housing units. 

One thing I think it is important to note, is that if 
increased reliance was focused on allowing the nonprofit sector 
municipalities through quasi-public entities and through public 
housing authorities to address housing needs, the total number 
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this point in time, give them more than one-to-one credit for 
the units that actually exist. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. Any questions? (no 

resp o nse) No? Thank you for your input. 
MR. CATON: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY : Rick Sauer, do you want to 

testify? (affirmative respo n se from audience) Come on up. 
MR. SAUER: I have some written testimony that I will 

just pass out, and then I will make a couple of real brief 
comments so as not to take too much time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You have the floor. 
MR. SAUER: As you a 1 ready know, I am Rick Sauer. I 

am with the Affordable Ho using Network. It is a statewide 
associ tion of over 145 nonprofit developers and supporters of 
their work, working throughout New Jersey to create affordable 
housing opportunities. 

I think it is impo rtan t to note the existence of COAH 
and the Fair Housing Act has l ed to increased action on the 
part of municipalities to plan for, and meet, the affordable 
housing needs in their communi t ies and their regions. That is 
an important step forward. 

A couple of things I would like to note in particular, 
though: I think it is important to realize that in the absence 
of a State housing policy, the f a ir share numbers that COAH 
does develop for the upcoming six years, to a large extent, 
sort of sets the target of what we are aiming at to meet the 
affordable housing needs of residents here in the State. It is 
important to keep that in mind both because we need to 
adequately address the overal l need, and we need to be able to 
have a benchmark against wh ich' we can judge what we are 
accomplishing. In addition, these obligations certainly do 
lead to increased willingness in the municipalities to continue 
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demand is that we really take a creative approach to developing 
some programs and developing resources both at the Federal and 
the State levels, as well as the municipal level, to move 
towards addressing those goals. Now, we might not create 
30,000 units next year, but we need to move in the direction to 
increase our capacity to do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I don't disagree with you. 
It is 20 to f ive. Is there anyone else who would like 

to testify? ( no response) Okay. Does anyone have any 
questions of Mr. Sauer? (no response) 

You can come on up ( speaking to representatives from 
COAH). First, I want to thank you. Your testimony was 
enlightening. You didn't hold back any punches. I don"t think 
we really ran a bad meeting. I didn' t crucify anybody. This 
was not like an inquisition. I think the information you gave 
us was enlightening. 

I just wan t to summarize. You did say that you are 
going to come up wi th fig u r es, l ike, in two months. 

MR. BERNARD: Wi t hin two months. We hope so. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You hope so. Well, two, 

two-and-a-half. I am not going to hold you to that. You are 
going to give one-to-one r e cognition for those who have already 
done their job as far as meeting their quota? 

MAYOR MATACERA: If I may? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: You may. 
MAYOR MATACERA: I think that is something that is 

already in place, yes, sir . I mean it hasn't been finally 
promulgated, but I think there is consensus on the Council to 
offer that to the Council as being part of the criteria. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: What else do I want? I think that 
is about it. 

Usually this has t o go through the "Register," right? 
Could we see your plan, ,, at least that , before it gets to the 
"Register," so we could at least get some input to you before 
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it becomes a-- Sometimes it is 45 days, 30 days, whatever the 
hell the "Register" does. 

MS. SMARTH: There is a comment period. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: The comment period. Is that 

possible? 
UNIDENTIFIED WITNESS: 

so. 
I don't s e e why not. I think 

MAYOR MATACERA: We would like very much to work with 
your Committee, Assemblyman, because it is important to us to 
be able to disseminate that information. I had a meeting with 
Senator DiFrancesco at the League of Municipalities Conference, 
and the Senate is looking for something like that. I mentioned 
it to Art down there. We would like to be able to do that. We 
would like to work with the two Houses and the administration 
to make sure that we are all going in the same direction. We 
a r e not concerned about that. We would very much like to do 
t hat. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: All right. Now, can I have the 
s ame five individuals come to another hearing before we do get 
this final-- You know, I would like to go over it with you in 
d e tail. 

MAYOR MATACERA: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Is that fair? I am not out to 

crucify you. I don't think I have; none of us have, really. 
MS. SMARTH: Why do you use that word? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Well, sometimes I am accused of 

doing that, but I didn't do it today. , 
ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Mr. Chairman? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: I would like the Mayors to know 

t hat this is a kind and a very gentle Committee. (laughter) 
Sd I have no problems at all with my Chairman. 

," 
I ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I want to thank you, really. I do 

thank you for your input. 
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of uni ts over a 11 that need to be developed in order to meet 
those affordable housing needs would be much lower. 

Along that line, many of these entities also focus 
much more on producing rental housing and targeting units 
towards meeting the housing needs of very low-income 
households. A vast majority of the units that have been 
produced through the development of housing through the 
Builders' Remedy process really have produced home-owner units 
that are targeted toward meeting the housing needs of people at 
the top of the low- and moderate-income spectrums. So they 
haven't gone down far enough to subsidize really low-income 
households, and they really have not met the need for the 
development of affordable rental housing in this State, which 
are two important areas that we need to look at. 

Along this line, I think it points-- If we are 
serious about creating a significant number of increased units, 
we really need to look at the allocation of resources and what 
programs are out there that can currently address those needs. 
We should support the increase of support for nonprofit 
developers, housing authorities, and municipal agencies 1n 
order to address that need in a better manner. 

I am open to questions if you have any. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Wel 1, I think you wi 11 have to 

agree that unless the Federal -government gets back big time 
into subsidies, the State can't possibly accommodate the needs . 
you are talking about. 

MR. SAUER: I would certainly agree with that. I was 
actually just down in Washington this 1 ast weekend. We a re 
involved in a national project to work on that effort. 
Certainly, if the housing needs are set in the State, whether 
it is 95,000, what they may be thinking about now, or what was 
said over the last six-year period of 145,000 units, it is not 
realistic to expect, with the current resources and programs 
out there, that it is going to be met. I think what it does 
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MAYOR MATACERA: Thank you, Chairman Kelly; thank you, 
Committee members. Do me a favor. I was going to thank 
Assemblyman Azzolina for being the extended family of this 
Committee and for participating . 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: The meeting is adjourned. 

(MEETING CONCLUDED) 
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November 23, 1992 

JOHN E. TRAFFORD, Executive Director 
WILLIAM G. DRESSEL, JR , Asst . Executive Director 
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CHRISTOPHER CAREW, Legislative Analyst 
HELEN YELDELL, Legislative Analyst 

Re: A-1489/ S-858, as amended on 
the "Fair Housing Act" 

Dear Member of the Assembly Housing Committee: 

The League Legislative Committee supports A-1489/S-858, as 
amended, a bill which provides for a "fair" adjustment of 
municipal fair share obligations under the "Fair Housing Act." 

The difficulty with which many municipalities are able to meet 
their fair share obligations, is well known. COAH has 
recognized the myriad problems associated with compliance with 
the Fair Housing Act, and responded by placing a cap on the 
number of units for which a municipality would be obligated as 
their fair share. Unfortunately, the courts invalidated COAH's 
efforts. 

This bill addresses the illegality 
well-intended attempt to bring some 
implementation of the Fair Housing Act. 
favorable action on A-1489/S-858. 

of COAH's 
reason into 

We, therefore, 

William G. Dressel, Jr. 
Assistant Executive Director 
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Int r_o_duct ion 

It is news to no one that the past decade has been one of turmoil 
and controversy with regard to providing State Mandated Affordable 
Housing in New Jersey. The municipal obligations established by 
the Council on Affordable Housing in 1986 were considered excessive 
by most communities. The result has been a great deal of 
resistance and conflict instead of compliance. To date of the 567 
municipalities in New Jersey, only 136 or 24% have certified 
housing plans. The 1000 unit CAP legislation proposed is one step 
in the direction of try ing to keeo the numbers established by COAH 
at reasonable levels. 

Calculating A Mu_nicipa_l __ Fair _Share 

In order to better understand passage of the 1000 _ unit cap 
legislation, a basic awareness of how the original obligations were 
calculated is important. 

The initial part of the fair share obligation number is known as 
indigenous need. This component is the estimate of existing 
substandard units (actual deteriorated units) occupied in the 
municipality by low and moderate income families. These units may 
be rehabilitated by a town to meet that part of its obligation. 

If a municipality is located in a designated growth area of the 
state it is responsible for the regional need (present and 
prospective need) as well. The present need is a reallocation of 
excess substandard units in the region and the prospective need is 
determined by projections of low and moderate income population 
within the region. This component of the obligation can only be 
satisfied by the creation of new housing units for low and moderate 
income households. The'regional need is allocated to communities 
based on their share of the region's growth area; covered 
employment, covered employment growth and per -caoita income. 

The sum of the indigenous need and regional need is modified by a 
series of secondary sources of supply and demand in the housing 
market. COAH estimated how these secondary sources would effect 
each munic:ipality. One of the sources is spontaneous 
rehabilitation, - the private market reduction of housing need 
through rehabilitation of substandard units by existing owners. It 
is subtracted from the initial indigenous need (actual deteriorated 
units) figure to obtain the final number to be rehabilitated by a 
municipality. 



The other secondary sources are demolitions residential units torn 
down within the fair share study period; conversions-residential 
units converted to other uses during the study period; and 
filtering-residential unit formerly occupied by higher income 
sectors of the housing market estimated to have become available to 
low and moderate income households during the study period. 

The secondary sources are subtracted from the regional need to 
obtain the final fair share estimate for a municipality. It is 
important to note that the regional need is also referred to as the 
new construction component. This figure is also the only component 
of the obligation be adjusted. An example is as follows: 

MIDDLETOWN TOWNSHIP / MONMOUTH COUNTY 
COAH PRE-CREDITED NEED: 1987-1993 

Actual Deteriorated Units: 
Less: Spontaneous Rehabilitation 
Indigenous Need 

Regional Need 
Re-Allocated Present Need 
Prospective Need: 
Subtotal: 

Plus: Demolitions: 
Less: Filtering: 
Less: Conversions: 
Regional Need: · 

Total Pre-credited Need: 

Total 
Ne ed 

308 
__ 22 

59 
1677 
2022 

11 
-167 
- 16 

Pre 
credited 
Need 

286 

1564 

1850 units 

Source: "Municipal Present, Prospective. and Pre-credited Need" 
published by COAH, dated may 21, 1986. 

Impact On Middletown Township 

Based upon the preceding, Middletown Township was given a Fair 
Share obligation of 1850. Of that number 1564 was the new 
construction obligation. According to COAH rules. a municipality 
cannot be reQuired to expend funds in order to achieve their 
obligation. In other words, utilizing such approaches as regional 
contribution Agreements (RCA's) or building public housing projects 
is a local option. Therefore. the number is supposed to be 



achievable via inclusionary development within the municipality. 
Inclusionary development typically means that one unit of 
affordable housing is built by a developer for every four market 
rate units built. This means that Middletown was expected to zone 
for and absorb 7820 new dwelling units (1564 XS) a six year period. 
Middletown Township presently has 22,000 housing units. It has 
taken Middletown over 300 years to get to 22,000. Therefore. it is 
apparent on its face that to expect the Township to absorb 7820 
dwelling units, over six years is simply unreasonable. This growth 
would require the issuance of 1303 residential building permits a 
year. Throughout the 1981-1991 decade, a period of significant 
growth due to the economic climate, Middletown only issued an 
average of 327 such permits per year. 

Comparison To Previous CAP Regulation 

COAH's prior 1000 unit CAP rule was overturned by the Appellate 
Court. The primary reason was that the regulations imPosed the 
1000 unit CAP without regard to the facts and circumstances of the 
municipality. As such, it was deemed an unreasonable exercise·of 
COAH's authority under the Fair Housing Act. The legislation 
currentl y being considered (S.858) differs substantially in t hat it 
clearly establishes a criteria whereby anyone wishing to can cause . 
a municipality to have an obligation in excess of 1000. However. 
in order to do so, it must be demonstrated that the particular 
municipality has established a growth rate of ~ver 833 residential 
building permits per year over the prior six years ( 5000 - 6 = 
833). This approach ensures that no municipality will be expected 
to experience a sudden dramatic increase in growth. It should be 
noted that in the case of Middletown, a 1000 unit obligation ·is 
still high given our natural rate of growth. Over the oast six 
years Middletown has averaged 104 residential building permits. A 
1000 unit obligation could mean having to issue 833 permits a year. 

Conclusion 

The proposed legislation limiting muni~ipal obligation~ to no more 
than 100 units, unless a greater number can be demonstrated to be 
reasonable represents a fair and logical approach to preventing 
severe obligations being imposed upon municipalities. Further. the 
legislation will have limited effect. Whereas the prior form of 
the legislation would have CAP all municipal fair shares at 50 
percent of the number assigned by COAH. a 1000 unit standard will 
impact on only a small number of municipalities. Indeed, only 13 
suburban municipalities have fair shares in excess of 1000. 
Let us also not forget that we are about to enter the next round of 
the Mount Laurel process. COAH will be releasing the new municipal 
obligations any time now. This legislation could help protect many 
municipalities from very high obligations and a great deal of local 
distress. 
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Thank you for allowing the Council on Affordable Housing to appear 

before you and discuss an approach that COAH is considering for 

determining State, regional and municipal need. The approach that we are 

about to discuss is the result of a great deal of input from all the 

parties involved in the process you established in passing the Fair 

Housing Act of 1985. The process employed by COAH in developing all of 

its rules began with an analysis of issues that COAH's staff felt should 

be considered by COAH. This analysis took the form of an issue p2;::er 

which was widely circulated throughout the State. 

COAH then conducted three public hearings on the issue papers. All 

of the public's input was then organized into an agenda and discussed by 

a working group at weekly meetings. The working group consisted o: 

representatives from: The League of Mu~icipaliti es; The Federat:cn c~ 

Planning Officials; The Alliance on Affordable Housing; The Consult:r.; 

Planners of New Jersey; The New Jersey Builders Association; The Cou::-t 

Masters; The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency: The 

Department of Community Affairs; The Civic League of Greater Ne~ 

Brunswick; The State Planning Com:-:--.ission; The Affordable Housing Networ k 

of New Jersey; The Association of New Jersey Environmental Comr:·,issic:--.s ; 

and The Rutgers Center for Urban Po licy Research. 

From week to . week, professionals with specific areas of expertise 

were asked to join the working group in order to enhance the quality of 

the input. The recommendations of the working group were very important 

to COAH in considering various changes to all of its rules, including the 

estimates of low and moderate income housing need. 

,x 



After listening to all this input, COAH emerged with some basic 

goals in developing the estimates of low and moderate income housing 

need. Some of the more important goals include: 

l. The numbers should be reasonable. They should not overwhelm 

municipalities. However, they should respond to the needs of the poor. 

2. They should be directed by the State Plan. The State Plan is 

clearly a growth management document that encourages most development in 

areas with the capacity to absorb it (i.e. areas with infrastructure). 

However, one of the basic tenants of the State Plan is that every 

municipality can grow and as it grows it should accept a portion of ... ~ne 

hou sing region's need. 

3. There should be a better fit between need and the amount c: 

undeveloped land remaining in New Jersey's municipalities. Thus, the 

municipal housing need should be sensitive to undeveloped land ar:d t'.:e 

State Planning CoITu~ission planning areas. 

4 . Municipalities that have addressed their Mount 

obligations from the previous cycle shculd receive credit for what the ;· 

did. 

COAH was also cognizant of some basic Mount Laurel principles ::: 

developing its methodology. The court system, in issuing the Mount 

Laurel Jpinions and in implementing these decisions, had establishe: 

basic components of housing need. 

-2-
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The court 

responsible for 

stated that every municipality in New Jersey is 

at least some portion of it substandard housing stock 

inhabited by low and moderate income households. Therefore, COAH 

estimated the number of deteriorated units occupied by low and moderate 

inco:7le households in every municipality. 

the U. S. Census. 

This estimate was made using 

The court said that some communities had accepted a disproportionate 

share of the poor. Therefore, the court limit ed the responsibility of 

municipalities that had high levels of substandard units occupied by the 

poor by a regional standard . The regional standard was determined by 

dividing the number of substandard un::.ts occupied by the poor by the 

total occupied housing 

calculat ed for each 

stock within 

municipal.ity 

a c; i ven region. The 

the hou sing 

same ratio was 

region. If C 

~uni cipality had an 

the excess went 

excess 

into a 

of subs tar.::ard housing occupied by 

regional pool for distribution 

the 

to 

po o r , 

other 

municip alities within the housing re;::.c~. 

The portion of substandard units occupied by the poor that rernai~e:: 

t:-ie m• .. micipal c:Jligation was calle:: :::--.e ::..::c::.genous need. The ?Or:::. :::-: 

above the regional standard that was ::is~ributed to other rnunicipal::.:ies 

within the housing region was called reallocated present need. It sho u!c 

be clear that both a re a function o: census estimates of substanda re 

housing. 

is 

The third basic component 

a projection of low and 

of ,.e-::d -...·as called prospective !'leed. I: 

mcde:ate income households. Populati on 
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projections are converted into projections of households. 

approximately 40 percent of 

qua 1 i fy as low and moderate 

the projected households 

income. 

median income. Median income 

(Moderate income is 

means that 50 percent of 

earn more 

percent.) 

and 50 percen t earn less. Eighty percent of 50 

By definition 

are likely to 

80 percent of 

the households 

percent is 40 

In projecting it s 1987-1993 pr o jections of need, the Counci :;_ 

employed the concepts of indigenous need, reallocated present need and 

prospective need. These components of need were quantified as follows: 

Indigenous Need 85,134 

Rea l l ocated Present Need 3 ~ ,41 1 

Prospective Need 80,421 

Total Need 196,966 

In accepting these basic concept~, CO~H's methodology was simila= 

t he one employed by the courts. Ho~ever, COAH recognized that : ~e 

private market would probably respond to some of this need. In using the 

census, COAH recognized that sound rr.arket units change hands and become 

available to low and moderate inco~e ~ol!seholds (filtering). Conversions 

take place and result in a new unit in an existing structure. These also 

benefit the poor. Also, to a limitec: extent, substandard units occl!p::..e::: 

by the poor are "brought up to code." 

- .; -



COAH projected that the private sector would satisfy the needs. o: 

54,259 households during the 1987-1993 period of need. 

munici pal responsibility was limited to 145,707 unit s. 

Therefore, 

The 145,707 ~rnit s were divided into indigencus :-ieed, reallocate:: 

present need an d prospective need. The indigenous and re2llocate:: 

;:,res ent need was a function of the 1980 census. COAH has reasoned :::2.: 

if municipalities are going to be responsible for estimates C:: 
substandard housing, those estimates should reflect the best and the ::-.:s: 

recent data available. Therefore, the estimates based on the 1990 ce!"ls-..:s 

should replace the estimates that resulted from the 1980 census. 

Between 1980 and 1990 the census decided to collect differe::: 

information on housing. Thus, not all census surroga-ces : J : 

substandard housing that were available in 19 ~0 are available in 

Perhaps because of the changes wrought by t ::. e U.S. Census Bureau, ::-.-2 

esti~ates of substandard housing oc:::t.:;:,ied 2y : ~e ;:,oor are less 

COAH originally estimated need. 

The ':::ird ::::asic component cf ::eed is ;:rcs;:,ective need, .. .-:: :::-. 
'-

..... . -= .. 

ft.: n::: ti on of growth projections proc:.::::ed :::iy The New Jersey :::le;:,ar:::-.e:-.: 

Labor. In 1986, when COAH projected need, even the most conserva:: ·:~ 

projections available forecast tremendous growth in New Jersey. 

not happen. 

As COAH deliberated on the relationshi? between the previo;.;s 0 --

future estimates of need, it did not ~ake sense for municipalities =~ __ 
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responsible for projected growth that did not occur. So, with the 

advantage of being almost through the 1987-1993 projection period, COAH 

feels it can adjust the 1987-1993 prospective need based on the growth 

that actually occurred. Therefore, under the approach considered by 

COAH, 1987-1993 housing need will be reduced. 

To the reduced 1987-1993, COAH will add a projection of 1993-1999 

:1eed that reflects the best projections available at this point in time. 

The projection is more conservative and is the same projection used by 

the State Planning Commission in developing the State Plan and by the 

Department of Community Affairs in developing the Comprehensive Housing 

Assistance Strategy. 

Therefore, the ap p roach being 

1987-1999 estimates of housing need. 

considered by COAH results i:1 

If the Council adopts such a:1 

approach, it seems only fair to provide municipalities with a one to c~e 

credit for the realistic opportunity they have created. 

I would suggest to you that, i:1 general, municipalities 

2.::dressed their fair share last time will have IT',uch less to co ::r::..s 

::ir.ie. This is because the estimates of substandard housing are less; :::-.e 

l937-1993 prospective need would be reduced; and the 1993-;..999 

projections are lower. Those communities that chose not to address their 

fair share may still have more reasonable obligations because of the same 

reasons enumerated above. However, these municipalities will probablv 

have relatively more to do because they would not receive the credi':s 

available to the corr~unities who developed plans with COAH or the cour':. 
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•need. 

Thus far, I have focused on some general concepts for est:.:7iating 

However, the Fair Housing Act requires this need to be distributed 

to individual municipalities. 

municipal level using the census. 

Indigenous :1eed is estimated at the 

However, there are regional pools o : 

reallocated present need and prospective need that must be distributed to 

the municipal level 

When COAH allocated the 1987-1993 reallocated prese:1t a r.C. 

prospective need, it utilized regional shares of covered employ:71ent, 

covered employment growth, land in the growth area (as measured in acres 

in The State Development Guide Plan) and aggregate per capita income 

(municipal per capita income multiplied by the municipal population). 

For example, if a community had 50 covered jobs and a housing region had 

1000 covered jobs, then the municipality had a regional share of . 005 :or 

covered jobs. Si:-:-,ila: regional shares ;...rere computed for eac:i :ac:o r. 
'T'. _ne regional shar e s were surnrned and one average regional share ·,.; 2 S 

computed for ea ch municipality. :'he average municipal share •..;as 

multiplied by the regional pool of need to determine the munici?al sha:e 

of reallocated present and prospective :1eed. 

COAH is considering changes in :he :actors used to tistribute ~eec. 

One =~ange being considered involves the use o: covered employ~ent. 

is an important factor because the Supreme Court has indicated that 

would favor formulae that recognized the link between accepting jobs and 

the need to provide housing. 

covered employment data. 

However, COAH has found problems with usin; 

It should be emphasized that covered employment data is collected jy 
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the Department of Labor for insurance reasons. The precise location o : 

employers is not particularly important to the De partment of Labor. 

Therefore, it is not unusual for covered employment to be assigned to the 

wr on g mun i cipality. The errors implicit in this data base result ::. n 

u nfa i r allocations that COAH has successfully corrected once 

municipality enters its process. However, it is time consuming t o 

correct unfair allocations and COAH has been looking to an improved data 

b as e. 

It has · been suggested to COAH that it might use non-res::.der.t::.a l 

:-at e abl es a s a r eplacement for cove:-ed jo bs data. In respo n se to : :-. :.s 

suggest ion, people experienced with the Mount Lau re 1 doctrine express ec: 

s o me reservations with such a change unless COAH found a 

relationshi:;;, b e tween c overed j o bs a:-:d :-.o n-reside:1tial rateab l es. 

perf o r med an ana l ysis and found a very strong relationship beb,;ee :-: 

,._ - ;,, . . 
.._ _. .... 

t wo. Th erefore, COAH believes that such a change would prese:- ·;e -- .=; 

strong link between jobs and hous::.ng and reinforce the link bet ~ -::-:: :-: 

ac ce p t i ng rateables and the responsibi : ity fo:- housing the poor. 

in 1986 , COAH used aggregate ;:,e:- c apita 1r:.come as a fa c :: : : 

S~s~~ibuti~ g need t o municipalities. -: :-. is fac:: o r was u sed as a :-e .:: :: -~ -:-

o f mun icipal capacity to acce;:;:: :--.eeG. Consistent with 

d irection, it was believed that wealthier co~ounities 

resources and more responsibility in housing the poor. 

the ,,... ,... .. - - . ,_...,_. --

had g:ea:-::: 

The aggregate per. capita inco;-:-.e factor had one flaw that c:.!.:-: 

t rying to cor::ect. Since it is :::-.e :-esult of multiplying po;:~:.:::. · -

times per capita income, it is a ::.1nction of population as we:: 

-s-
tJX 



wealth. Some communities that had accepted a great deal of multi-fa::ii::.y 

and small lot single family development were heavily impacted by this 

factor. These . municipalities received larger housing obligations because 

they had accepted large numbers of households. The municipalities 

discussed above are not necessarily wealthy municipalities. 

Therefore, COAH is looking at a factor that will not be viewed as 

?enalizing towns that had accepted a diversity of housing types. It is 

examining a factor based on the differences between a specif:c 

r.:unicipality's 

median income and the median income of the poorest municipality in the 

housing region. 

In 1986, COAH allocated need t:o municipalities based, in part:, 

::e;::.onal shares o f grcwth area depicted in t:1e State Develop;ne::-;.t Gc: ::: e 

?lan (SDG?). COAH calculated the amount of land in the growth area : .:: : 

each rnunici pal i ty and divided the resulting acreage by the amount o: 
growth area in the housing region. 

The growth area factor did not consicer the amount of t:ndevelc,:e:: 

land available because no such data ~ase ~as available. This resulte:: ::-. 

so ::ie a::.locations that had :ela':io::.ship with the .: e:7,a:.. :-. : :-. :: 

c:ndeveloped land within a municipalit:r. Al though the legislat·..::e 

anticipated such an occurrence by 'requiring COAH to develop procedures :2 

adjust the municipal housing obligation due t:o the availability of vaca~: 

land, COAH thought it would be desirable t:o develop a better relations~:~ 

between need and ·the availabilty of vacant land. 

-9-



Unfortunately, as COAH began addressing this problem, there was 

still no consistent data base of undeveloped land for New Jersey. AS 

COAH began considering creating such a data base, it was clear that COAH 

had several requirements for any municipal inventory of undeveloped land: 

1. The data must be available in time to calculate the municipal 

housing obligations; 

2. The data must be available at a price that was within COAH's 

budget; 

3. Land must be classified consistently so as to result in 

consistent regional shares of undeveloped land within the housing region; 

4 The undeveloped land must be available by State ?lar.r.i"g 

Commis sion planning area so that COAH could allocate need in a :-:-,ar.,,er 

that is consistent with the State Plan. 

COAH examined its alternatives. Fo::- example, 1,;e cor.sidered tryir.c; 

~o ~ollect and computerize municipal existir.g lar.d use ~aps. Howe ve:, :. .. :e 

realized that cif:erent municipalities ~ight classify land sc~e~~a~ 

:J.i:ferently and different classi:icaticn systems could result in -.::-:.:ai: 

allocations. We also realized that we did not have the staff _ to cor::plete 

such a task in a timely manner. 

Similarly, COAH considered interpreting aerials. Ho1-:ever, 

completing aerial interpretation in a timely rr.anner was also not feasible. 

-10-



COAH cons 1de red using tax records. However, it was not clear that 

we could obtain the tax records from the Department of Treasury. Havi:1g 

examined these records, we also realized that the records were not 

available in a format to merge with the State Planning Commission 

planning areas. 

The Department of Environment a 1 Protect ion and Energy ( DE?E) has 

begun a marvelous geographic information system. DEPE has completed 

approximately five counties. It is estimated that DEPE may co mplete its 

mapping of ground cover in New Jersey in five years. 

Having exhausted several alternatives, COAH be~an examining t he 

possibilities of land satellite imagery. There is a satellite that ~aps 

ground cover that is capable of taking a complete picture of New Jersey 

every nine days. Thus, the satellite was capable of delivering a ·,ery 

recent picture of New Jersey. 

The satellite has been used a great deal for agricultural purposes. 
-,._ 
J. \.. can differentiate between corn and soy bean crops. It ca:: 

differentiate between a pine tree and deciduous trees. It has been used 

to ma;, t::e s;:,read of gy;:,sy moth defoliation. 

~as capable of such sophisticated :napping, 

COAH believed that, i:: 

it should be a~le - ~ 

diff erentiate between developed and undeveloped land. 

COAH commissioned Cook College to demonstrate the land satellite's 

ability to differentiate between developed and undeveloped land. Afte:-

checking the results against aerials, we found that it classified :nost 

land correctly. It had problems in residential areas where mature trees 

-11-



formed a canopy, shielding homes from the satellite's view. In these 

areas, the satellite "saw" forest and classified the land as undeveloped. 

~o correct this problem, we were able to merge census data with t~e 

land satellite data. Where the census information demonstrated that land 

was clearly developed, COAH considered the land developed. 

As a result of this effort, COAH developed a consistent data ~ase 

that allowed COAH to estimate undeveloped land by municipality. When we 

digiti~ed the State Planning Commission's planning areas and merged them 

with the satellite image, COAH ,:,.;as a:::ile t o develop esti;.".ates o :: 

undeveloped land by municipality and planning area. 

This ability to estimate un~eveloped l and b y municipality a:-:= 

?lanning area a 11 owed COAH to be sensitive t o the goals of t :-ie 

::, 1 . __ ann1ng Corr.rni s s ion. In meetings with the S;:ate Planning Co:::."Tiissi c :-:, 

COAH developed an understanding that municipa l ity can grow and, as 

it grows, should accept a share of the regional need for low and ~cdera:e 

:.ncome housing. However, most of the need should ~o to area ~:::-: 

:.nf=astructure or to areas where :.:-:frastructu=e can :::ie extended. 

2 as e d on the St ate P 1 an n in g C:::: ::-_":'. i s s ion ' s go a 1 s f o r each .i. a:--.:--,::-:; 

2rea, :.twas clear that the undeveloped land estimates should be we:.;~te= 

=Y planning area. Most of the undeveloped land in the state is in areas 

~here the State Plan is I • trying to encourage the preservation of 
,. 

environmentally sensitive areas. Most of these areas lack tne 

:.nfrastructure to accept higher dens:.:y development. 

-12-,,, 



Thus, COAH has devised a weighting system with the State Plan:.ing 

Commission. Undeveloped land in planning areas l and 2 (areas with 

infrastructure) is multiplied by a factor of l. Undeveloped . 1 and in 

planning area 3 (where infrastructure can be extended) is multiplied by 

. 5. Undeveloped land in planning areas 4 and 5 (areas lacking 

infrastructure) is discounted (multiplied by 0) . This method of 

allocating need and several other areas of mutual interest have taken the 

form of a memorandum of understanding that has been adopted by the State 

Planning Commission and COAH. 

I think it is apparent that as a result of this weighting system, 

areas of the State that have been mapped a s planning areas 4 or 5 ..:ill 

not receive a housing allocation based on undeveloped land. Any 

allocation in these areas would be based on the municipal wealth and 

acceptance of rateables. 

As a result of the land satel l ite , ::o.:;.~ ':)eli eves it has developed 

the ability to be more sensitive to :-::ur.ic::.pal capacity and the 

?lan. We know that the land satell::.te :.:-:-.a,;e is not perfect. We kno,., 

that it overstates the amount of undevelo~ed land i n the State. However, 

it interprets New Jersey's ground cover ==~sistently. It classifies ~jat 

.. sees" in every municipality ':'herefore 

accept ab 1 e region a 1 shares of u n de v e l o? e d l and for each mun i c i pa 1 it y i :1 

the State. 

' - - ., -
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SUMMARY 

COAH is considering a methodology that yields 1987-1999 estimates of 

r.eed. It replaces indigenous and reallocated present need estimates 

based on the 1980 census with estimates based on the 1990 ce nsu s. It 

reduces 

occurred. 

1987-1993 prospective need based on the 

It includes a projection of 1993-1999 

growth that actually 

prospective n eed based 

~Hojections utilized in developing the State Devel op'."'.',er.t and 

~edevelopment Plan and the State's Comprehensive Housing Assistance 

Strategy. The resu l ting municipal obligations would be tempered by a 

projection of the private sector's ability to respond to the need. In 

addition, all municipalities would receive a one to one credit for 

addressing their previous Mount Laurel obligation. 

COAH is also cor. si dering changes in the factors used to distribt.:te 

::eed to the munici p al leve l. COAH is considering using regional stares 

of non-residential rateabl es, a factor based on differences in municipal 

income and und evel op ed land by municipality and State Planning Corri_'11issi or. 

planning area. 

t \ 
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EXHIB::::T A: REGIONAL STANDARD 

EXHIB 2: T B: 1987 - 1993 HOUSING NEED 

EXHIB I T C: 1980 SURROGATES OF SUBSTANDARD HOUS I NG 

EXHI BIT D: 1987 - 1993 ALLOCATION FACTORS 



REGIONAL STANDARD 

Substandard Units Occupied by Poor 
Total Occupied Housing Stock 

J,IX 

Exhibit A 



1987 - 1993 HOUSING NEED 

Indigenous Need 

Reallocated Present Need 

Prospective Need 

Total 

Private Market Ability to Respond 

Municipal Obligation 

Exhibit B 

85,134 

34,411 

80,421 

199,966 

- 54,259 

145,707 



Exhibit C 

1980 SURROGATES OF SUBSTANDARD HOUSING 

1. Age of structure 

2. Lack of complete plumbing 

3 . Lack of complete kitchen facilities 

4 • Lack of central heating 

5. Overcrowding 

6. Lack of elevator (4 stories) 

7. lack of private access 



Exhibit D 

1987 - 1993 ALLOCATION FACTORS 

1. Covered employment 

2. Land in growth area 

3. Aggregate per capita i nc ome 

REGIONAL SHARE EXAMPLE 

Jobs in Municipality 
Jobs in Housing Region 
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ffordable 
Housing 

One West State Street 
P.O. Box 1746 
Trenton, New Jersey 08607 
(609) 393-3752 Network FAX (609) 393-9016 

Assembly Hc using Committee 
Testimony on COAH ' s Fair Share Allocations 

November 23, 1992 

Thank you Chairman Kelly a nd ~embers of the Committee for providing 

an opportunity to comment c -~ the formulation of the Council on 

Af fordab l e Housing's new fa i ~ s hare numbers for the six year cycle 

begi nn i ng in 1993. As you know, my name is Rick Sauer and I am the 

Assistant Director of the Non - Profit Affordable Housing Network of New 

Jersey . The Network now _- epresents over 145 non-profit housing 

dev elopment corporations a nd their supporters, who are working in 

c ommunit i es throughout New J ersey to produce affordable housing and 

r e vi taliz e neighborhoods. 

I would like to preface my comments by noting that the existence 

of the Council on Affordable Housing and the Fair Housing Act has led 

t o i ncreased action on the part of municipalities throughout the state 

t o develop p l ans for addressing the affordable housing needs that 

e xist in. t heir communities and their regions. Without COAH, it is 

doubtfu l whether many suburban municipalities would currently be 

taking such steps. The Fair Housing Act also created new resources 

not previously available for affordable housing, and this has been an 

i nvaluable contribution. 

As we all know, the need for affordable housing in New Jersey is 

immense. The State's Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy 

(CHAS) estimates that 675,000 low- and moderate-income households 

Housing For PlfX· r--Jot For Profit 



currently have housing problems. COAH's response in their first round 

(1986-1992) was to develop a goal of 145,000 units needed, a very 

modest target considering the need. 

In the absence of a s t a t e housing policy, the fair share numbers 

that COAH develops, to 2 l arge extent set the target against which 

efforts to meet the af f c~dable housing needs of the state's low- and 

moderate-income reside r. :: s are judged. To a large extent, these 

obligations lead to an increased willingness of municipalities to 

address their affordable housing needs, and should continue to drive 

the development of prog ~ams and the allocation of resources to address 

these needs. 

We would like to emphasize that COAH's new fair share numbers 

should accurately reflect the real need for affordable housing i n New 

Jersey. While we understand that there may be a lower prospective 

need for new units, due to lower growth rates than expected, the need 

for affordable housing for the state's current residents (or 

indigenous need) is much greater than has previously been acknowledged 

by COAH, and should be accurately estimated . 

Indigenous need should not only be based on the number df 

households currently living in substandard housing , but should also 

include households who are paying too much of their income toward 

housing costs. The state's CHAS estimates that 620,000 lower-income 

households are cost-burdened, that is they pay more than 30 percent 

of their income toward housing expenses. In addition, 300,000 of 

these households are seriously cost-burdened -- they pay more than 50 



percent of their income toward housin~. It is important that the 

housing needs of these households are acknowledged and addressed. 

One major impediment to increased production of affordable housing, 

h a s been the over reliance on the private for-profit sector to develop 

+.~e s e units. Not only is the development of affordable housing not 

~n attractive option for most for-profit developers, often time it 

~eads to the development of an enormous number of market rate units 

in order to obtain a small number of units that are affordable to low-

and moderate-income households. In addition, most of the affordable 

units developed by the for-profit sector have been for-sale units 

accessible to only those earning at the top of the low- and moderate-

income categories. For all practical purposes, the need for rental 

housing and the development of units that are truly affordable to 

lower income households has not been achieved by private developers. 

If we are serious about developing a significant number of housing 

units that are affordable to New Jersey's low- and moderate-income 

households, there needs to be an increased reliance on, and support 

of, the non-profit sector, municipalities, and public housing 

authorities. In large part this is a matter of allocating adequate 

resources to increase production and providing technical assistance 

to those who need it. 

In other words, we need more creative policies to solve the severe 

housing problems in our state. Reducing the estimates of need and 

lowering COAH's goals will give a false picture of reality and will 

hamper, not help, efforts to address the state's housing crisis. 

3 
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Assemblyman John V. Kelly 
Assembly Republican Office 
State House, CN 098 
Tienton, NJ 08625 

Dear Assemblyman Kelly: 

Re: CO.AH Methodology 

P.O. BOX 2324 
"TRENTON, NI 08607 

609-3•2 ·2324 

I . am a licensed consulting planner in New Jersey. As you can see from my attached 
Summary of Background and Experience. I have a great deal of experience in addressing 
low and Imderate income housing allocations from a number of perspectives. I was one 
of the professional planners who worked at the Superior Court level with Judge Eugene 
Serpentelli in developing a methodoloey for det.ermining municipal fair share. I have 
worked with many municipalities in developing master plan housing elements which 
respond to their low and moderate income housing obligations and I have come to know 
first hand the practical probl~ encountered in inr.erpreting and implementing the Mount 
Laurel doctrine at the local level I have also served as a court-appoinr.ed Master in low 
and moderate income housin1. cases that have remained in coun and were not transfe.rred 
to the Council on Affordable Housing. 

After hearing a presentation from An Bernard on the proposed COAH methodology for 
the next round of allocations covering the period through 1999. I would like to share 
some observatims with you and the members of your committee. · 

The general approach being considered by COAH to estimate housing need seems to be 
IDOWll in a sensible ducction. The idea of substituting 1990 estimates of substandard 
housing far the 1980 cii:tirnates is unquestionably appropriate since we should encourage · 
the use of the most current data available. In addition. the 1987-1993 projections of 
growth statewide did not and for that reason it is logical to reduce the 1987-
1993 Prospective Need to m<rc closely reflect the growth which has taken place. These 
modified clements of noed, when considered along with the projections of 1993-1999 
need and the use or more appropriate allocation factors, should result in a reasonable 
~logy which can withstand challcllge. • . 

The proposal to provide a one-to-one credit for municipalities which have responded by 
rezonin1 to meet their Mount Lamcl obll~n is a definite advanta,c in the method-
ology and one mat is toially consi.stcnt with COAH's approach of presenting numbers 
which cover the period from 1987 dlroufh 1999Jl continuing to rccogni%e the need 
which was identimd for 1987-1993, albeit in a · cd way~ ofk>wcr p,wth 
swewidc, the fmmula provides a basis for assi~g credit resulting ill what should be a 
mca favorable allocation result for those mumcipalities which have ~sion in 
thc:ir crdiDances for low and moderate income homing. This approach also serve 
as a needed incentive for communities to provide for affttdable housing rather than to 
attempt to avoid their statutory obliption. . 

,zx 
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Anemblyman Kelly, p.2 
November 20, 1992 

E"YCD foc those municipalities that chose not to produce affordable housing, the overall 
effect of die numbers may be reasoaable because the estimates of substandard units in 
1990 are lower than in 1980, and the 1987-1993 projections are adjusted downward 
reflecting better estimates of the population growth that has actaally occurred over the 
past five yean. 

I also believe the chan&es COAH is contemplating in the factors used to allocate need 
from the regional to the municipal level are an improvement. The replacement of 
aurcSJUC per capita income is most welcome since that factor tended to penalize blue 
collar towns that had accepted large numbers of people in a diversity of housing types 
since this factor was more scnsidve 10 total population than it was 10 the relative 
household illcomc in a community. 

'I» use of an undeveloped 1aod factcr for each municipality that is sensitive to the State 
Development ud Redevelopment Plan is equally sound. Its use of the LANDS.AT 
satellite is a practical and laudable approach to a better fit between housing ne.ed. the 
coals of the State Plan. and available undeveloped land. I have witnessed the capabilities 
of the satellite dat.a in mapping municipal ground cover. I have cnrrrined its results in 
municipalities I know, and I have been impressed with its utility and relative accuracy. 

Finally, I think COAH has wisely created some continuity between the 1987-1993 
numbers and this allocation of numbers. As a planner with a number' of municipal clients, 
I view this sense of coninuity as essential in dcvelopin& loog-lCI'lll plans for my cliellts. 
As the formula bu evolved into one which uses more appropriate and equitable allocation 
and crediting methodology, it will be dw much easier to encourage and secure voluntaty 
compliance at the municipal level 

I am sorry that I will not be able 10 auend your November 23rd hearing. I will be away 
for the entire week. However, if I can be of further service to your committee. I would be 
happy to help. 

Very troly yours, 

Bncl. 

JfX 
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i , . i ) ' 
-~ ::JRODUCT ON AND BACKGROUND :' . I l 1 • I 1 

On behalf of the1Townsnip of Middietown, p1easa aooept tlus 
report in support ofl ~sse'.ml1y Bill 1489. It is z:;espectfully 
sub.mitted that the proposed egislation imposes a reajonab1e fair 
share limitation for ]'he fol owing reasons: 

1 
· 

1. T!Je market f J muiit family hOusing ultiinatelr plays 
the primary ro~, in· etermining the abilitr of a 
municjpality t 1crea e affordable housing. · Since 
municipalities r ~e1y ve capacity to absorb the 5,000 
townhquses ·and cppdomi 1 ums within any given six year 
period that wo~ld be necessary to creatt 1000 
affordable unit$ 1 via ptandard inolusionary ,oning, 
placing a 1,000 !unit fair share limit will no, as a 
practical matte~l r~s[lt in the provision o fewer 
affordable un1tst r 
2. T~ the exten~ la ~un cipality does h~ve the capaoit~ 
based 1on past ext~rienct to provide for more ·thah 5,000 
uni ts,· the Leg is ,tion rovides a means for an objector 
to prqve this fat and the~eby compel the munictpality 
to provide more J~forda le units. 

l l I I 3 . Tqe Legislat qn a~d asses the concerns expressed by 
the Cqurt in thel9ase: f Calton Homes, Inc. v. council 
on At fordable 1Housl by having a cap t at is 
legi~fatively at'~hor~i·ed and that is related to the 

.facts 1and oircum rnc~s of "the municipality. . 
. I . 4. R•qui.ring a ·1 nic,i ali ty to provide for mo e than 

1000 units tends ~o fOfCe the municipality to dig in 
i ta beels. " Thu, f by 1capping fair shares at l, 000, the 
Legisiatu~~ ea~·~edir•ot munici~alities thal might 
other~ise strupgle -~ndefinitely to reduc~ their 
respo~sibilities1 ~o sufport and implem~nt a 1-0 0 uni~ 
plan. l The low ap;d mod1rate income households .pf thi~ 
state .are far better $erved by having a limitedi number 
of mun1cipalitie~ ladd:r:le~s and implement 1000 uni:t pl~ 
rath~r than ~9ro1~4 these limited num*er of 
munic~p•lities ilTO a !lrngthy adversarial process. . 

5 . Wll,ile the 1, qo unik limit wi1l greatly imprbv~ the 
fairn~ss and rea 9nabtJness of the . Fair Housin~I Act to 
a lim~ted n~mber Qf mu1ncipa1ities, it will not -- as~ 
practical matter l- sl nificantly impcot on th$1 number 
o~ afiordable un • S trla municipalities would otherwise 
produce. ! I . 

J I 

The repor~ that fol ws i 11 ~labor~te on each .~£ the abov~ 
points . i · , · 

..... 
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. · , · 1 
Criteria for 1000 ea ·. · nde:r: -:-1489 . ;. ;I i 

The Legislation ·n· ar~Xy addresse$ the Court's once~ th8t 
the cap "telate to• ·'. the ! i'facts and circumstan • es of the 
municipal~ty. Spec!· ical y, the Legislation recogniz~s the 
importanc~ 0£ . revi ~ing the extent of growth !within the 
municipal! ty during t six ~ears prior to petition Eo determine 
the likely : ~otential •(or ~uf.ure growth. If a munitipality had 
issued les~ than 5,oqo ce~tificates 0£ occupancy i1l the 6 year 
period priqr to the pe~1t1Q!for substi:mtive certi~ipation a cap 
would be applied bebauae t would be unlikely t~at greater 
absorption_ of new h_otis1ing its would occur during j:he nelft _s~.x 
years, mak~ng planning!for :m re than 1000 -units a purely a~demic 
exercise unlikely to ~~odu~ real housing within that! time frame. 
If a municipality ha~ is~ued more that 5,000 oer ·ificates of 
occupancy, !a cap w~ul1jn~t ,bh applied. 

Statewide Mun~cipal 1!~~ct : 
' I . . i I 

While .;A-1489 propi;tses o make the Fair Housing Act operate 
in a fai~ and re'J;onab e way to a limited number of 
municipal~ties, it ~,11 ve min~mai, i~ any, im $Ct on the 
number of affordable units •tat would otherwise be prpduced~ The 
Council on Affordable Jii:ou.s:ing (COAH) has . assigned a fair share of 
more than 1000 to only 23 bl 567 municipalities -- j a mere four 
perc~nt o( the mun~elba11~4es in the State. Of t~ese 2S, ten 
municipali~ies are ur*~n a:i:;e s where the obligation represents no 
more than its indige~ous n~ d, or estimate of substJndard units 
within each city. Af !obli ation to construct new, affordable 
units was riot attribu ed to hese cities. 

I ~! i . -. An e~•mination . th' majority Qf the remain1ng thirteen 
mun1cipal1~1es rav$al . tha~ ~-1489 will have a negli ible impact 
on the number of a~prd~~le units that would o herwipe be 
produced .. t For examLll:e, <;:tjAH certified the plans 1 of Paramus 
(Bergen Co\.mty) and Ptrsip~;ny-Troy Hills (Morris County) prior 
to the Calton HomesJa:eci$ipn striking COAH's cap !! regulation . 
COAH did nqt reopen ti, cex-1fied plan$. Thus, the adopt.i,on of 
A-1489 will have no ifpact on the number of affotdable units 
these munipipe.lit.ieJ'\rdll ! -roduce. The Courts ar~ in va·rious 
stages of ,e.p~roving 000 ·u it plans of Dover Towl\~hip ( Ocean 
County) an4· We.yne To $hip ("Passaic County) • Thus, pie adoption 
of A-1489 will not re~ult n the ore~tion of plans £or few•r 
affordable 'units ther ·I l 

Fu~th~rmora, wh ~e C.O H assign~d Brick Town hip (:~ce~n 
County}, Cherry Hill Camde County}, Edison (Middl sex County) 
and Woodbridge (Middl ~ext unty) fair shares beyon 1,000, the 
municipalities have oure or are in the process f securing 
substantial reducti s. l OAH issued a ~ediatio Report in 

revealing Brick's en tle~rnt to cre4its that wou~d bring its 
fair share well beloy 1,00 units. Also, in Edison, although 
COAH assigned the Township~ faif share of 1111, COAH!reduced its 
fair share to 325 a•tr r•rt C c;::ts. S~mHaf ly, in th~ 
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Cherry Hi~l case ov,~ whi5n Judge Gibson preside, the -Court 
appointed . master ha?, re~ponded favorably to the Township's 
application for a Vf~ant ~and adjustment and pr limi~arily 
recommended that the Courtj reduce its ~air share from 2295 to 
1082 uni ts:. Finally 1 I in tije Woodbridge case, whicl:l is aiso in 
couJ:t jur,i.scHction,] .1the municipality is in thel process of 
pursuing a vacant lanpi adju tment that coul<l very wel.1. reduce is 
fair share ' to a number I well elow 1, 000 uni ts. l 

Midd~etown, of 1a~l o,:f the municipalities befo e COAH, has 
been hard~st hit by 1the ifting of the 1000 unlt cap. The 
Township~ ~hich was ~n the COAH process when the talton Homes 
decision ~as rendered~ had its capped Mount Laurel obl.i~ation 
increase from 1000 tel ~850, ·nits. While Middletown lwoul4 expect 
to $ecure a vac~t 1.and ad~ust~ent even in the absence of t he 
enactment of A-l489j the] Legislation would fapilitate an 
~xpe~itious ~esolutioh;of the COAH process thereby enabling it t o 
j,mmedie:teiy commenc~; im~l1ementa tion of :l. ts pla~ and to use 
municipal funds for b{tldin~ housing. In this regar1, Middletown 
brought a ,motion to yOAH, equesting that it be p_ermitted to 
qommenoe i~plementat . on of. tegional contribution ag1eements for 
some 500 ~nits. C 'H de~ied the ~otion there,y delaying 
i~plementation until s process concluded. I ; t ; . 

. As shown in thi~ an~ ys1$, almost all of the non-urban 
municipal~ties exat~ne~ -- which is the majo~ity ot the 
munic1pal1~ies in thi,. f cla, ifi~ation -- would not p, ovide :fewer 
units as a result of1th~ nactment of A-1489. ithout the 
adoption ot this legislatio, however, there remai s an unfair 
and onerous burden pl 6ed o at least Middletown. : I I 

T_he Rationale for a . 1 000 Ca 
'.. l I ·. · · 

The p~rden a 1oop; unit fair share places on a lunicipality 
i s so grea~ -- that req~i'ring: municipality to providr more would 
be onerou;s. To il,1-'ust1;·1te, pursuant to appl~oable COAH 
standards, 1 a municipality s free tQ satis:fy its ~ntire· fair 
sh~re thr~u~h inclu~ionat zoning, In fact, COA~ permits a 
mun~cipal~ty to ~dpfes~ that portion of its fair share 
represente~ by its 1'digen,ous component through i~clusionary 
zoning ins~ead of a r tiabiliJcation progrem. Thus, a ~unicipality 
cQuld eddre•• a 1,0 0 uni, ~air share by rezoni! for ,5,000 
condominiufAs and by m;oa~n a 20 percent set asid. In order 
for MiddteEown to pr luce ~e 5000 u~its necessary to delivery 
1000 affordable un sin the next siz years v a standard 
i nclusions~ zoning, wold have to issue 833 cer~ificates of 
occupancy per ye$r. iMidd etown has not issued 8j33 bui.1ding 
pe~mita in ·~ny year i. the ast 20 years -- even in the highest . 
boom year. See Cher III. Indeed, an examination t the chart 
reveal• that in~ si f· yeai;- .p_ex-j,od durtng this 20 ya~r period of 
the great~st gro~th . ithip,t~e Township did the,total even 
approach 5000 units. Thefefor~, thete is no basi to project 
that ma~ke~ forces wi •u~~t ~he provision within ix ye~rs of 
more than the 5000 ~o ~i uriits w~ich incl.usionary zo ng for 1000 
units w!l,.l generete. I . 1. ; . ·• 
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' As a _p·ractical ,P1ftter it. is extremely unlik ly that any 
community could absor~ 5,00 unlts in any given six year period. 
A striking example o~ 'ithis. act emerged in the Che • Hill case. 
In that case, the 'L'ofipship was required to considef. rezoning a 
parcel known. as Serg,~ Far~ to permit the construct~on of 2,200 
townhouses . -- less tha~ ha1tthe 5,000 units necessary to produce 
1,000 af~ordable units. he owner of the parcel vigorously 
objected to the prop?sal tat his land be rezoned in this way. 
In fact, t~e owner p~9<1uced an ~xpert report substatitiating that 
:i,t would ~ake 26.19 year~ 1 o construct, market an~ sell . 2,200 
townhouses, -- well i1f~exoes1s of the si>e year compli(ce period. 
The Court did not require the inclusionary rezoning. 

The p1opulation jt_ an~J municipality would be • ramatically 
increased py the con truot~on of more than 5000 housing units. 
ijsirtg a persons per h ~eho~d figure of 2.95 to refl~ct the trend 
toward smaller house old size, the new units woulJ increase a 
population'by 14,750 berson ov~r a six year period~ While even 
this population gro~th,I is e C8S$ive, it is certainlj unrealistic 
to expect : a munioip~lity ~o provide an increase ~n excess of 
14,750 per,ons ~n sue la ti5e period. This rate of growth is far 
too great tor any com lnity] l · 

Wh1le '. the precisl~exte~t of the improvements to the ~xisting 
infrastruqture and additio~ of municipal services required by 
meeting ~n obligatlbn Q~ more than 1000 unit cannot be 
quantif1e~ ·without anl~pproved housing compliance pll!ln, the surge 
i~ construption and 9~rgeon~ng population would cle~rly pr,esent 
overwhelming new de~q~ds within a rel~t1vely short ime p~riod. 
The mandatory set-asid~, oflen involves large-scale _ 1const.ruction 
creating ~tress on '•xist4ng in£~astructure. Further, the. 
administrative ~µrdeni:on thf municipaitty in terms 9~ proc~ssing 
a surge of ·applicatio~~ fo~ revelopment as well as P4:ir~ormi~g all 
necessary 1overs~ght ~o;n the project create a atraiin. A3:so, a 
municipali.ty must paz-iticipr,te in the design, eng:iineeririg and 
constructi~n of the ?frastructure required by thejproje9t, as 
well as pr;ovide the . dditi~nal .fire and police pr~tect,ion and 
other muni1ipal. servi 's d~m~de~ by the influx of resident$. 

~he cqst of educ L-6.on jnd heaith services to a j unicipality 
would easi~y increase ~er yel~# w~th a portion of thi·~ additionai 
annual cos~ not cove~d by 1tha new property taxes enera~ed by 
the compli~nce plan 9uaing units. All of these emands will 
occur in tija aho~t te · ; ·and must be met by a municip~ ~ty without 
the benefi,t of long1lfange )planning and funding. I Obvio_usly, 
implementa~io_n of a hf'r.si.n~ iobligation of such naagni~ude c;-eates 
an enormou, financia~ :burd.ep on the municipality, portion of 
which must ,be borne b~ ,!the o1 her . taxpayers in the mu,.oipali'ty. 

Achia~ing a fa~~i s~~re o~ more~than 1000 un~ts through 
zoning for inclusiona~•de~e}opm~nt wo~ld be over burr:;some to a 
municipality b:y any rr~son~ble ~tandar~. _Fo_rcin9 a uni.ci.pali ty 
to zone for too large,~ nu•~~ pf affqrdable un~t• ay actually 
decrease t,he re~l.:f.stf .f Q~pol rtu:ni ty f .or the proviJ·ion of suci.-

. .I ! 
, . ' '4, Jtl-K 
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housing. : For i.nsta11ca. ~fj a town were forced to one for 2000 
affordab~e units w~bn ~he~a•i• .no way that t~ market for 
multifamitY housing: coul~ absorb 10,000 units i, six years, 
creates a ,.ei tuation i1iere drvelopers may be reluctan;t to COJDmence 
the deve~opment p;9ces~l Essentla1ly, it would thus be 

.counterproductive to the ,provision of affordable housing to. 
"glut" th~ market bf I overfzoning- £or ino1usiona1 development 

tllat ::':::: :::o:1r .. ::t ;ng::::::r:~an 1000 units might be 
mitigated :throµgh cr}.tive Fpproaches to meeting tne obligation. 
f{ow~ver, ~onaiderat~o;n of ,.my lessened zoning impdct resulting 
from a municipality~s creativity in voluntarilyimeet.ing its 
obligatio~ would in 4i;£ect ~unish a munioipe,lity for its efforts, 
particula~ly in lighflof tnrfiscal burdens likely O be imposed 
by al terna,te complial~ sch es. 1 I j . ,, 

Altho~gh there ~e comtliance devices which ma be eJnployad 
as· an alte.rnative to mandat • ry set-asides, all compl ance devices 
impose burdens on ~unic•palities. For example, Regional 
Contribution Agreem~nts (~dA's) are an alternat1v•tmethod which 
may . be us~d to aatj,'~'.fy uP! to 50 percen~ of a mu i~ipali ty' s 
obligation,. Funding 'l~CA'~~hich may cost a sending municipality 
as ~uch e~ $27,500 i,r un ,t such as tbe regional pontribution 
agreement ., between Frankli Township and Perth ~oy. S~ch an 
RCA cre~tes a severflfisc burden on the sending ~unicipality. 
At these ~ates, a mun.icipa ity with an obligation in excess of 
1,000 unit,s tha~ a-t;ti~pj:s tb satisfy 500 units of i s obliijation 
through ~~As must b \pre)? red to spend as much as_J 813,7,50,000 
over a f:1.ve year per 9d. .J.A.c. 5:92-11.S(e). :En fact, even 
.using the ·.mean CO!;it · an ·r· , · $ 1,250.00, which is j the midpoint 
1;)catWQ$n t~e . most exp1e 1nsiv.e Franklin/Perth Amboy RCf-- of $27,500 · 
and the least expen$ive . enville Township to Ne~ark ~CA at 
$15,·ooo,oqo, the cost.: to a municipality transferrihg 500 units 
could be $,10,62~,0CO~~O. ( · uncil on Affordable Ho\ising 11 status 
of Municipalities", dated tµgust 1992). This is 11 s~gnificant 
fiscal burpen for th~ pommujity. Additional RCA uni s would only 
f~rthe~ impact the coffunit 's fiscal resources . . 

A cas~ in point~linvol es Middletown Township Iich ejected 
~o satisfy 50 percen 1of it~ fair sh~r• via RCAs at tha ti~e its 
fa~r sher& was capp ~~at 1000 pursuant to the C0A regui~t~on 
subsequent~y dec1i9l:"e ~lleg l. These 500 RCA units3i11 cost the 
citizens. 9f Middletown o.v r $9,000,000. To im ose an even 
greater fi~ca1 burde1• bn th se citizens is unreason 1e. . I 

In a~di tion, ,1 , er~ is .no guarantee tha tj a sendin:g 
munici~ali;tY will fi . a mu ioipality within the re ion eligible 
and willing to rece e th units perticu1arly in view of the 

municiJ;>al.; and reg ~n~l.: ee<1s may·: not be su&1 · ept1ble to 
sstisfact~on thr~)Ug ,j RCA' 1 ·the f\\i1 use of th a mechan1.sm 
cannot be !'ssured as j com' n.en~ of ~1ianoe. · .- . 

ii 
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Other complianp1e d.e ic~s us~d as alter . at.ives to 
inclusionary developm~~t, su~ a$ the ~daptive reuse of existing 
structures pr construq~ion of affordable units by a unicipality 
can :z;-equir~ subsidies :: in the range of $45,000 to ~65,000 per 
unit, two to three ti~~s th• cost of an RCA. In employing such 
devices a municipalilt takls oh a great financial ! burden for 
whicQ it should be rewarded, and not punished. 

Inde~d, experie c;;e ha sh9wn that imposing al fair :3hare ( ii . . 
greater th~n 1000 uni:~ doe not translata into mor~ affordabl e 
housing for, low and m ~era1;,income ho1,1seholds. As exhibited i n 
the pest de_cade, the larger e fair share , the more inclined ani· 
municipality will be tb "di in its heels 11 and f igh~1 instead o .: 
complying. :- To illustf~te, 9her:i;y Hill had develope a plan for 
1000 unit~ and the ,,ster iwas on the verge of r commending 
approval ~f that pl_ap wh e n the plaintiff brougnt a mc:,tio:n 
challenging COAH's 1op~ uni{ cap regulation upon wh~ch the plan 
was premi~ed. On fyne 29, 1990 , the Court ru~ed i6 the 
plaintiff~s favor. fr the j two years since this ~uling, t h~ 
Township d~voted its ~resourpes to reducing its fai:i:t share. to l 
nµmber it qould managff ·1 Those efforts thus far have I resulted .:. .1 
the master issuing a report r~ating that the fair Shafe sho~ld be 
1082. Thus, insteadjdf the Township devoting its resources t o 
implementi~g a 1000 u~!t pl~ in the last two years, Ihe Townshi p 
has beet'l compe.lled to t1ngagel in tair share warfare. · 

It 1s ,respectfully subtitted that the poor ar far better 
served by a municipali~y imp ementing a plan capped ai 1000 units 
rather thah having tb$ del very of affordable hou~ing delayed 
when the municipali~ :has l:>~en forced to fight to ,'?ave reduced 
wh~t it regards as a.fl unreasonable fair share obitgation. A 
municipali~y must b~ ~bla ~o conclude that its fefr share is 
re~sonabl• in l~gh~ of the prsctical burdens end p1anning 
considerations the co ~unity must face. · 

I 

! · 
i 
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MUnioipaHl~ 4J :::: Share Obligation, 
1~eate'r than 1000 Units 

At1antic City 
. l 

Hackensack : 

Paramus 
' 
I 

l 
Cherry Hill rrwp 

Newark 

Bayonne 

Hoboken 

J~rsey City 
; 

No;-th Berge,n 
i 

Union City : 
' 

West New Y~rk 
' Edison Twp ; 
l 

' Woodbridge iTWJ? • 
. . 

Middletown Twp 
l 

Oce~n Township 
i 

Parsippany ; 
Troy-Hills ·: 

Brick Twp 

Dover Twp 

Clifton 

Passaic 

Paterson 

Wayne Twp. 

F;liz~beth 

' I ! 

l J New 
Indi9~nous Construction Fair Share 
Need I ·1 . . Obligation . Obligation 

' ·! 711. 
·] 

6 19 ' 
3 

3359 

562 

1094 

2104 

0 

1256 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

895 

956 

1564 

1225 

928 

882 

2246 

705 

0 

'o 
I 

1~6g 

'O 

1 

4076 

1171 

1097 

2295 

4885 

2218 

1197 

5988 

1329 

1556 

1158 

1111 

1513 

1850 

1298 

1028 

1035 

2411 

1756 

1474 

3424 

1544 

1556 

J'rK 
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CHART 2 
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.t 
i MIO LETOWN TOWNSHIP 

J 

~TOTAL BUILDING PERMITS 

' 1970 - 267 . l 80 - 283 1990 - 37 
' 

: 1971 - 3g'5 l 81 ... 424 1991 - 46 
i 
1 

1972 467 l 82 - 585 

1973 42'2 l 83 ... 682 
; 

1974 -. 2Ef~ 1 84 ... 518 
I 
I 
I 

1975 - 13,7 1 85 - 435 

1976 -- 427 1 86 - 241 . I 
l 

'1977 48,2 l 87 ... 210 
!~ 

, 1978 579 l 88 .:. 57 
.; 

1979 - 809 1989 - 34 

] 8 

'.I J 
1· 

-;I .JIX 
I 
I 

I ii i ' ., 
R•98X I 908 349 6917 12-04-92 05 : 06PM POii ~10 





lL __ 


